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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in Exhibit number 1 constitute forward-looking statements,
which are based on the Corporation’s current expectations and assumptions, and are
subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those anticipated. Such risks and uncertainties include, among others,
general business and economic conditions and competitive actions.
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THOMSON
e :

Providing integrated information solutions worldwide

THOMSON LEGAL & REGULATORY

3% of ToTAL REVENUES

2001 2000 Change

REVENUES 2,827 2,619 + 7.9%

THOMSON LEARNING

26% of TOTAL REVENUES

2001 2000 Chaige

ReVENUES 1,851 1,388  +33.4%

EBITDA' 855 775 +10.3%

EBITDA’ 406 358  +13.4%

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT? 708 647 + 9.4%

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT? 264 234 +12.83%

17,000 people based in 30 countries / Led by West, Thomson
Legal & Regulatory serves the legal, tax, accounting, intellectual
property, compliance and business professional. Other major
businesses and brands include Aranzadi, Brockers, Carswell,
ELLIS, 10B, La Ley, Lawbook Co., RIA, Sweet & Maxwell and
Thomson & Thomson. Thomson electronic legal research services
are preferred by 55% of US law firms.

All results far ongoing businesses, excluding disposals; millions of US dollars.

13,000 people based in 26 countries / Thomson Learning
serves the higher education, corporate, professional and gov-
ernmental marketplaces. Solutions address both traditional
classroom and online learning. Major businesses and brands
include Course Technology, Delmar, Education Direct, Gale,
Heinle, Nelson, NETg, Prometric, South-Western and Wadsworth.
Thomson products are used in 100% of public and academic
libraries in the United States.

1 Earnings before interest. tax, depreciation, amortization, restructuring charges and Year 2000 costs.

2 Before amortization, restructuring charges and Year 2000 costs.




THOMSON FINANCIAL

22% oF TOTAL REVENUES

2001 Change

RevENUES 1,550 +32.4%

EBITDA' 405 +22.7%

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT? 257 +16.8%

9,200 people based in 27 countries / Thomson Financial serves
financial professionals, including investment bankers, stock-
brokers, portfolio managers, financial planners and corporate
executives. Major businesses and brands include AutEx,
Disclosure, First Call, iFR, ILX Systems and investext. Thorson

is the source most quoted by the financial media for equity
earnings forecasts.

THOMSON SCIENTIFIC & HEALTHCARE

10% of TotaL REVENUES

2000 Change
REVENUES 697 653 +6.7%
EBITDA' 176 164 +7.3%

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT? 151 140 +7.9%
4

3,800 people based in 13 countries { Thomson Scientific &
Healthcare serves researchers and other professionals in the
healthcare, academic, scientific and governmental marketplaces.
Major businesses and brands include American Health Consul-
tants, Derwent Information, ISl Web of Science, MICROMEDEX
and PDR (Physicians’ Desk Reference). Thomson information
is used in more than 1,400 academic and research institutions in

more than 100 countries.




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS? FIVE-YEAR REVENUES

2001 Change

ReveENUES 7,237 +11.1% 8,000

EBITDA' 1,786 +16.4% 6,000

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT? 1,310 +17.2% 4,000

ADJUSTED EPS? $o0.72 - 4.0% 2,000
7

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 8,220 5.1% o

FIVE-YEAR EBITDA' FIVE-YEAR ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE®

97 98 99
$0.80

o.6o

0.40

0.20

¢}

Cantinuing operations; millions of US dollars except per common share amounts.

Earnings before interest, tax. depreciation, amartization, restructuring charges and Year 2000 costs.

BCFO!C amom’zation, restruc‘ruring Cha(gCS and Year 2000 costs.

Adjusted earnings per common share before restructuring charges, Year 2000 costs, net disposal gains and,
in 2000, one-time tax benefits.




Thomson: in demand, on demand

Our customers need to know. The success of
their businesses, organizations and research
depends on their ability to make better decisions
faster. Thomson is the leading provider of
need-to-know information of unparalleled
breadth and depth. We develop and apply
innovative technologies to ensure that the
information and knowledge in demand is

available on demand.

Cover: Citigroup, New Yerk City
Led by Managing Director Paul S. Galant (back rew, fifth from right), Citigroup team members gather for a weekly project review.
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Letter to Shareholders

The Thomson Corporation achieved significant gains in revenues and earnings 'before' interest; taxes, &de'pre
ciation and amortization (EBITDA) in 2001, despite volatility in global markets: Revenues from continui
operations, excluding disposals, were $7.2 billion, an increase of 18 percent from the prevrou‘ ;year EBIT
from contmumg operatlons excludmg drsposals was $1.8 bxlhon an increase. of17 percent from 2000

'earnmgs estimates.

Across each of our markets, we expanded the breadth of our mforr_n tion
provrded more electromc dellvery optrons to grve our customers |mm dr

- $3.9 bllhon an increase of23 percent from 2000 and now comprlse 54 pe
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’produce outstandmg shareholder value in the future:

%ZJ{WV»—% Kenn;th R. Thom:so‘r'\‘ W/@

ichard ). Harrington
Chairman. i
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Any question.
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Questions are what connect Thomson with

its customers. Every day people turn to Thorhson
with their questions. They come looking for
information ranging from customized technology
training materials to case law precedents, from
financial services industry data to patent and
trademark searches. They come looking for data
and tools that help them make the right decisions.
They come to Thomson because they need

information they can trust.







How can Thonison help Citigroup distribute propristiry content together wi

caomson date cond analytics to 200,000 clients in 103 countrics?

PauL S. GALANT / MANAGING DIRecTOR [/ GLosAt Heap oF ECOMMERCE & MarkeT Data StraTecy Divisions f Citicraur [/ New York CiTy

)6




Success for Citigroup and other leaders in the financial services

industry requires a combination of the right information and

tools to enable professionals to make better decisions faster.

Working with Paul Galant and his international team, Thomson
combined a suite of Thomson Financial data and workflow tools
with Citigroup data and information from other sources to
meet the needs of Citigroup global clients. This sophisticated
“information ‘solution, integrating data and analytics with world-
wide reach, enables Citigroup to take full advantage of the breadth
of Thomson resources. - Thomson is respected throughout the
financial community for the strength of its brands. First Call is
the leading Internet provider of real-time broker research, earnings
estimates, insider trading information and corporate news releases.
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ILX provides integrated online equity information and services
to securities firms, banks, asset managers and corporations.
International Financial Review (IFR) provides inteliigence and
data on international capital markets. Thomson is pursuing majo

initiatives to be part of the workflow in high-growth sectors of
the financial services industry. For instance, Thomson has formed
a partnership called Omgeo with the Depository Trust & Clearing
Corporation. The partnership handles straight-through processing
and trade settlement capabilities to help financial services clients

meet their information and processing needs. Thomson Financial

offers the most comprehensive range of data, information
tools and analytics to help financial professionals make better
decisions, improve productivity and achieve superior results.
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How can Thomson help a small number of faculty teach finite math to 5,0c0 students?

DR. MicHAEL PILANT / PROFESSOR OF MATHEMATICS [ TEXAS A&M UnIVERSITY [ COLLEGE STATION [/ TEXAS




PR,

Thomson partners with educators like Dr. Michael Pilant
to develop products and tools that deliver high-quality

instruction through a variety of channels. Thomson Learning
g

textbooks are supplemented with online interactive learning,
permitting greater flexibility in course design and giving
students the freedom to draw from classroom and Web-
based learning. | Thomson is also part of a joint venture witl
15 major universities worldwide, including the University
of Virginia, Fudan University (Shanghai), University of
Melbourne and the University of Glasgow, to establish a new
online university, U21global. ~ Thomson is a leading provider
of learning products and services for the higher educa-
tion, corporate, professional and governmental marketplaces.




The Thomson Learning strategy is to provide solutions around
the learning process that help customers find the learning
resources they need at sites like Petersons.com, connecting

learners with sources of education and training; learn using

traditional course materials, electronic resources or a
customized blend from South-Western, Wadsworth, Heinle,
Course Technology, Delmar, Gale, NETg, Nelson and Education
Direct; and measure their success through Prometric, which
operates the largest computer-based testing and assessment
business in the world. - Thomson Learning is using this
foundation to become the leading provider of learning
solutions for customers who seek academic excellence, profes-
sional development and a measurable competitive advantage.
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How can Thomson help us manage the ever-increasing
amount of information we need to serve our clients?

ALIRIO GoMEZ | DIRECTOR OF LIBRARY & INFORMATION SERVICES / MiLBANK, TweED, HADLEY & McCroy [ New York CiTy




TEOLISON LEGAL & REGULATONY

The information needs of the legal community — from sole
practitioners to multinational firms like Milbank — are changing
rapidly. Working with Alirio Gomez at Milbank, Thomson
contributed to a customized portal to supplement bound
versions of reported cases, statutes and texts. The Milbank
Research portal, which includes a suite of customized
~ Thomson offerings, is made available electronically to
the lawyers and staff at Milbank worldwide. Included in
 the portal are data from Westlaw.com, the online research
and workflow service that is a leading Internet source for
the retrieval of cases, statutes, news and business infor-
mation. * Thomson Legal & Regulatory is a world leader
in value-added content, data timeliness and accuracy and
analytical tools. Westlaw, for example, comprises more

than 15,000 databases and more than one billion records.




While its principal market is in the United States, Westlaw is
expanding in other countries including Australia, Argentina,
Denmark, Spain and Sweden. After only two years on
the market, Westlaw UK is now used in more than 70 of
the top 125 British firms.  In addition to global and online
expansion, Thomson Legal & Regulatory is developing
products and services in the areas of law and accounting
firm practice management. Through the combination
of Dialog and NewsEdge, it also provides current and
archived news and business information that can be
filtered for particular areas of interest. Through custom-
ization, integration into existing portals and intranets,
wireless delivery and further expansion into global markets,
Thomson Legal & Regulatory helps customers like Milbank

benefit from and manage the information revolution.
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How can Thomson help e deteiiine the best antibiotic

combination for this patient in shock, with fever and seizures?
DR. RICHARD E. WOLFE [ AsSISTANT PROFESSOR OF MEDICINE / HARVARD MEDICAL ScHOOL
CriieF OF EMERGENCY MeDICINE / BETH ISrRAEL DeAaconEss Mepical CENTER / BOSTON
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Quality of care in a hospital depends on access to timely and
reliable information. For emergency physicians like Dr. Richard-
Wolfe, having the right information a few clicks away can save
- lives. Thomson MICROMEDEX products help Dr. Wolfe and
his team get rapid -answers through its online and wireless
delivery of crucial drug and poison information. Thomson

~ helps healthcare professionals navigate quickly through the
~ information they need to make the right decisions. The PDR
(Physicians’ Desk Reference) and its online service are the
leaders in drug information. Physicians World and the recently
acquired Gardiner-Caldwell create one of the world’s largest
"independent providers of continuing medical education




and communications. : In its Scientific business, Thomson has
market-leading offerings, most of which are delivered electron-

ically. Key users of its Derwent patent information products,
ISI scientific journals and subscription-based ISI Web of Science

are research and development professionals, technologists,
scientists and corporate and academic libraries. As its
market changes, Thomson Scientific is enhancing its Internet
and intranet solutions by mconporatmg knowledge managemem
tools that enable the integration of customer content. The
Thomson Healthcare businesses are addressing the needs of
‘the pharmaceutical industry by developing product offerings
in areas such as genomics and new molecular development.
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: AMES.C SMITH EVP Exscunve DEVELOPMENT & CORPORATE AFFADRS THE THOMSON CORPORATIO
HARRINGTON PRESIDENT & CEO, THE THOMSON CORPORAT«ON BRIAN H. HALL, PRESIDENT & CEO
HOMSON LEARNING; PATRICK] TIERNEY




' MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
“ (unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in US dollars) -

The Busmess of Thomson

-.The Thomson Corporatlon ("Thomson or the “Company ) is a global mtegrated
",company servmg busmess and professxonal customers worldwnde Thomson has Ver44, ooo employees_ in,_ '»~‘

ormation solutions

commumty S .
“Thomson Screntﬁc & Healthcare Provndmg mtegrated mformatlon services and solutlons to researchers and
other professronals in the healthcare, academtc sc1ent|ﬁc and governmental marketp!aces .

The results of' contmumg operatlons ofthe Company exclude the results ofdlscontmued newspaper operations,
- discussed below under “Drscontnnued Operatlons " The results of ongoing busmesses for the Company and

Earnmgs before |nterest tax deprecuatlon amortlzatlon restructurmg charges and Year 2ooo costs (EBITDA)
and operating. profit before amortization,. restructurmg charges and Year 2000 costs. (adjusted operatmg
profit), are measures used by the Company to measure its operating performance ncludlng its ablhtyt ‘
generate cash flow. EBITDA and adjusted operating profit and related measures ‘may.or:n y N nsister
with the calculation ofsnmllar measures for other companies, and should not be’ vrewed as alternatwes to net
earnings or other measures of performance calculated in accordance with Canadlan generally accept d

" . accounting principles. -

27

35
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8 of the busrnesées acqulred from:f

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Total revenues increased in 2001 by 11% to $7,237 million. Revenues from ongoing businesses increased by '
18% to $7,175 million, reflecting contributions from acquisitions made during the year as well as growth from ‘
core businesses across each of the market groups. ‘ f

North American revenues, prior to the elimination of mtergroup revenues, increased 8% to $6, 096 mI”IOﬂ
and accounted for 83% of the total. Revenues from outsnde North America increased 35% to 51 232 milhon
reflecting 17% of the total.

Total EBITDA increased 16% to $1,786 million. EBITDA from ongomg businesses increased 17% to 51,790 mlllron :
reflecting a margin of 24.9%, down from 25.0% in 2000. Total adjusted operating profit increased. 1’%.to" L
$1,316 million. Adjusted operating profit from ongoing businesses increased 16% to $1,320, m|l|ron’ The' '

“increases in EBITDA and adjusted operating proﬁt resulted from core growth acqmsntnons and lo e
for’ stock apprecratnon rrghts The decrease in margin was prmcnpally caused by integration 'c 5

%2 mllhon of charges were mcurred for the reorgamzatlon of certam
& Healthcare group. The' remalnmg 38 mﬂhon |n charges re
Regulatory group for ongomg strateglc mrtlatwes i

36




Equity in losses of associates includes the Company s proportxonate share of net losse nveStiri'er_rfs
accounted for under the equity method. S

Earmngs from continuing operations were '$657 mnlhon in 2001 “an increase of_15% from, 571’m'lhon in
2000. However, after adjusting for the after-tax éffects of.restructuring’ charges ‘net gams on dlsposals
- of businesses and investments, Year 2000 costs and one-time tax benefits recogmzed in"2000, ad)usted
__earnings f from: contmumg operatlons were $451 m!“IOH in 2001, a decrease of 4% from the»' qunvalent 2000

R Earnmgs
("‘H“IO"S of US doHars, exceptpercommon shareamounts) S Cz001 U 2000

Earnings and earnings per common share
from continuing operations 657 571 $1.05 $ 0.92
Add back (deduct):
Restructuring charges, net gains on
disposals of businesses and investments
and Year 2000 costs, net of tax (206) 2 (0.33) -
One-time tax benefits - (1o5) - (0.17)

Adjusted earnings and earnings per common share
from continuing operations

n, v'esultmg in

common d;vsdend cash payments of $279 mlllnon (zooo $271 m;lhon)

29
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_ Market Group Operating Reports

_profit:for this category from 2000 are lower expenses for stock appreciation rights and mmonty
partlally offset by lower ad;usted operatmg proﬁt From Thomson Media o »

W = s

A_-'A

- year. Customer buying patterns are concentrated in the second half of the year, partrcular!y in the Iearn g

~and 81 and is mcorporated in thrs discussion by reference

pubhcatlons were sold in 2000. The remaining publrcatlons and the interest in ANC were sold in 200

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the following table, the Corporate and other category includes ‘corporate costs, minority interests and costs
associated with the Company’s stock appreciation rights, as well as the results of Thomson Media. Thomson
Media was established as an operating segment in 2001 following the decision to retain and manage as an
independent group certain Thomson Financial businesses previously held for sale. Because Thomson Medla‘

- does not qualify as a reportable segment for accounting purposes, it is included within the Corporate and other- e

category. Segmented information for 2000 has been reclassified on the same basis. Revenues.in Corporate and I
other relate solely to Thomson Media. The principal reasons for changes in EBITDA and adjusted operatmg >
te

. o A'd‘justyi;d‘
Revenues : o EBITDA! o operating profit’

(millions of US dollars) 2001 2000 ;2001 - 2000 ‘ \2oo1
Legal & Regulatory 2,827 2,619 855 775 708
Learning 1,851 1,388 406 358 264
Financial 1,590 1,201 405 330 257
Scientific & Healthcare 697 653 176 164 151
Corporate and other? 242 272 (52) (58) (60)
Intergroup (32) (29) - - -
Ongoing businesses 7,175 6,104 1,79C 1,529 1,320
Disposals* 62 410 (4) 5 (10)
7,237 6,514 1,786 1,534 1,310
"Earnmgs before interest, tax, depreciation, amortization, restructunng charves and-Year 2000 costs
* Before.amortization, restructuring charges and Year 2000 costs.
. Includes the following operating results of Thomson Media: revenues $242 mthon (2000 $27z million); EBITDA $12 mllhon (20
adjusted operating profit S4 million (2000 — S35 million). : :

Drsposals include the results ofbusmesses sold cr held for sale.
e i

Typically, a much greater portron of the Company's ad;usted operatmg proﬁt arises in the second halfyof he

regulatory markets while costs are spread more evenly throughout the year. As a resu!t operatmg margins
increase as the year proceeds. For these reasons, the performance of the busmess should be Judged base on
the results for the whole year rather than by quarter. Unaudlted quarterly |nformatlon is provrded on pag

Drscontmued Operations

in February 2000, Thomson announced its intention to sell Thomson Newspapers (TN) as part of its strategic
program to focus on technology-driven information and solutions for businesses and professionals. The primary
activities of TN were the publishing of daily and non-daily newspapers and other advertising and speaalty
publications in the United States and Canada. In addition, through a joint venture partnership, TN. held a 50%
interest in Augusta Newsprint Company (ANC), a newsprint mill in Augusta, Ceorgia. The majorrty of TN"

38
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. THOMSON LEGAL & REGULATORY -

Overvuew

The Legal & Regulatory group provides mtegrated m’r’ormatron and solutlons to Iegal tax accoun ing, -
intellectual property, compliance and business professronals around the world. The group’ has apprommately‘
17,000 employees and business operations in 30 countries throughout North Amenca, Europe Asia- Pacrﬁc '
and Latin America. g ‘ -

In 2001, the group experienced significant revenue increases in Westlaw online services, the launch of Westlaw

in Spain.and continued market acceptance of Westlaw in the United Kingdom. The group’ expanded its oﬁ'ermgs o
of software solutions in the United States through the acquisitions of FindLaw and ProLvam}, nd the launch of
innovative software products for tax professronals, such as Creatrve Solutlons commercnal serwce that
electronlcally files US tax returns. The group expanded its global presence ith" a “total ‘

- wrthm the four regmnal markets it serves.

Fmancnal Results Ll 7

Revenues from ongomg busmesses mcreased 8% to $2 827 mrlho as a
‘~',West|aw revenues and strong prlnt sales partrarlly oﬁ'set by Iow" globa

o ‘as Westlaw online usage slowed partlcularly in New’ York Cnty, anc
“temporanly delayed ‘Online actlwty rebounded shortly after September 11 wh|le
recovered by year-end A , ; :

~ businesses grew 5% to $708 mlllron EBITDA margm mcreased to 30. 2% (29 6% ; ed sales from’
hlgh margin Westlaw products; combined with restructurmg efforts in the first half of the year and- dnlrgent -
cost control throughout 2001, allowed the Legal & Regulatory group to achleve proﬁt and margm lmprovem nts. .

- systems and expendrtures associated with the launch ofthe SAP R/3 platform a busmess ‘process manageme
system at \X/est Group En

39




‘ North Amenca

32

Westlaw usage and print product sales. Online revenues increased 11% due to innovative feature and-functionality ~ -~

- FindLaw, a leading legal portal in the US; Protaw, which offers client-server practice management tools .
Growth inrevenues in 2001 in the groups Canadian operatlon Carswell, was driven by hrgher renewals of:,_' e

in US trademark ﬁlmgs In response Thomson & Thomson lmplemented a series of cost reduction. program"

Reduced—operatlng performance was experlenced at Compu Mark the global trademark research ﬁrm -and
- GEE, the UK-based regulatory. publrsher The group will restructure its UK legal and regulatory busmesses into

"~ from the inclusion of the ﬁrst full year ofoperatlons of Westlaw UK, launched in; March 2000; Westlaw K

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION ANlj ANALYSIS

In North Amenca West Group generated strong growth in revenues in the US in 2001.2s a result of hlgher

upgrades including My Westlaw, as well as expansion of available content. Acquisitions during the year inclided

caterlng to the small to mid- sized law firm market and Wthl"l has already released its first oFFenng mtegrated R o
with Westlaw and BAR/BRI, a bar review provrder in the US acqunred as part of the Companys purchase of
select. assets of Harcourt. :

print products and. a series of new sales initiatives throughout the year. Improved efficiencies resulted in o
higher margins. ' : BT

The North ‘American trademark research business, Thomson & Thomson, was affected by a 23% market declme .

a single operatmg group that is expected to result in operatmg efﬁcrencres European operatlons beneﬁted

successfully concluded its- ﬁrst subscription rénewal cycle The service malntalned |ts hlgh penet
among Iarge law firms and law schools. Additionally, the group mtroduced Westlaw in Spam dunng 00
completed a_number ofsmall acqunsntlons during the year. , A e

4o




Latm Amem:a

Brazil’s IOB experrenced growth in revenues and proﬁt durmg 2001 through develo’pme
integration activities. The group expanded into the Brazilian legal market with the acquisit
- alegal publrsher fn Argentma La Ley generated solid performance through most f:

. 2007, provrdes onllne servrces wrthm the Argentme Iegal commumty

Asia-Pacific "'- S A G
The group reported revenue growth and lmprovement in operatlng eFﬁcxency due to
“ offerings and infrastructure across the region. Revenues from online services were enha
‘Westlaw Australia and Taxpoint. Addltronally the group acquued Lawpomt a leadlng‘pr
©registry mformatlon in Australra

~ Market Factors and Trends

" The wor!dwrde legal and regulatory market |s solrd dependable and mature Onli

Ce

provrders and evaluatrng new markets, ideas and offermgs

. 33
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 MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

rH_omson LEARNING

' _Overvrew

"The Learnmg group is a leadmg prowder oflntegrated learnrng products, services and solutions to mdrvrduals
_ post—secondary learning mstrtutrons and businesses. The group employs more than 13,000 people and serves :
 customers in over 130 countries, v

" The Learmng group is focused on achrevrng global scale and. operatronal efficiency in growmg markets whtle

- _concentrating investment on the strongest acaderfic disciplines and lifelong learning segments. The Learnmg
up leverages the Thomson bra and uses technology to dellver |ntegrated solutlons to customers

2001 was a'year of'growth and tra’nsformatron The group completed the acqursrtron of selected Harcourt :
,hhrgher education and lifelong learnlng busmesses The acquisition of Harcourt's college publrshmg busmess
i solrdlﬁed the Hrgher Educatron groups posmon |» the market The mtegratron of the Harcourt busrnesses wrll

’Financjal Results

: 5Revenues from ongomg busmesses mcreased 33% in 2001 to $1 851 m|ll|on> Key factors contributing to;this
‘growth were the Harcourt. _acquisition and contmued growth from the groups core Academ‘ ‘busines
- enues; accounted for 31% of total. revenues

i EBITDA from ongorng businesses was 5406 mrllron representlng an increase of 13% compared to. 2000
Adjusted operatmg proﬁt from ongoing busmesses also increased 13% to $264 mxllron Those i mcreases resulted ;

, pnmarrly from ‘operating efficiencies in_core busmesses hrgher revenues in all sectors and mtegratron
-synergies 1 related to the Harcourt acquisition. Certain one-trme costs relating to the Harcourt acqutsrtron
-fcharged agalnst EBITDA and adjusted operating profit in 2001, EBITDA margin decreased to 21.9% (2 5.8%
©2000) prlncrpally due to these lntegratlon costs, but’ also due to lower-margln performance in theilifelong
._Learmng segment caused by a softemng in. the m’r’ormatlon technology (lT) market, <

,_Capltal spendmg |ncreased to. $2oo mrllron (5165 mrllron m 2ooo) reﬂectmg mvestment m newly cquired
" businesses,’ technology and drstrlbutron mfrastructure across the group BT
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: --»r_',computer-based testmg o B Ry : pe

: Academic -

The Academrc group, compnsed of the Hrgher Educatron group and Gale experrenced growth in revenues
. for the year. These results reflect.the complementary nature of acquired Harcourt trtles ‘Gale’ bene
. expandrng its e- reference ltbrary oﬁ'enngs and continued to expand its international reach prrmarrly rn Europe
I addition, Course Technology reorganrzed its operatrons to accelerate trme to- market for new product
: to compete eﬁectrvely in newer markets U ; s

erelong Learmng

: erelong Learning group revenues rncreased srgmﬁcantly, with the ma;orrty of the i mcrease commg from the'
“Harcourt acquisition as well as the full- -year effect ot’acqursrtrons made in 2000. Delmar a vocational publrsher o

and: Peterson’s, an online college preparation and registration busmess rncreased both revenues ard proﬁts‘f“ ‘
. for the year, while soFtenmg in the T market resulted in lower operatmg margms at: _Prometrrc, a provider of

-l:educatronal mstrtutrons launched Uz1global to offer hrgh -quality, fully accredrted hrg er .
onlrne Addrtronally, the group completed the rollout ofa global Englrsh Ianguage trarnmg rnrtratlve oﬁ'e

speakrng abllrtles

i “._»Market Factors and Trends

are well established in lrbrary markets and contmue to expand their share of th
. Respondmg to the market the Academrc group | enhanced existing electronrc produ
“to better serve customers S

s
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

“In the lifelong learning market, large corporate clients seek total solutions that provide courseware, content,

" tools.and services for the enterprise and its knowledge workers The addition of NETg, Drake Beam Morin and
" Thomson Education Direct, and thexr mtegratlon into the groups emstmg businesses, posmons the group to

better meet customer needs

In the international market, reg:onal economic risk is a sngmﬁcant factor that the group manages by dlvertl'ng‘ N

resources. into areas of greater opportunity. The group selects areas for expansion, taking into account
reglonal economic strength, and under‘takes strateglc alliances to reduce some of the risk.

in. mternational Ieammg there is an increasing demand for educattonal products that focus on h|gher educatnon’

‘and are tallored to particular regions. The need for dlstance Iearnmg ‘solutions i is expanding rapidly, partlcularly

ﬁ(nn Asna In’ response the group establlshed U21global a jomt venture wuth 15 research based uni ersmes

|ts po mon in the global hlgher educatlon and n‘elong Iearnmg markets
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i .‘Overvrew

o wThe Fmancral group serves major. investment. banks, corporations and asset managers, and reaches the desktops\ s

THOMSON 'FlNANClAL

‘ Thomson Fmancxa! provndes mtegrated mformat|on and workﬂow solutlons to the worldwude ﬁnanmal community. -

of 170,000 sales and tradmg professmnals The Fmancral group employs over 9,200 people worldwrde and

" serves customers in 70 cou ntries. |

“In 2001, the group largely completed the mtegratxon ofthe Primark and Carson achISItIOI’lS Wthh srgnrﬁcantly,
‘ ,_enhanced the group’s integrated product offerings and increased operating efﬁcnencres The group also entered‘ _
*into key strategic alliances durmg the year, including: : g

. Omgeo a50/50 partnership with the Deposxtory Trust&Clearmg Corporatlon for transactron processmg servrcesf .

- i- Deal a partnershlp wrth Mernll Lynch Salomon Smlth Barney and Mlcrosoft for Internet based securmesﬂ

r by customersv
’and md_u»stry consohdatnon negatlvely |mpacted 2001 revenue results Revenues from electronic products and
servnces'represented 89% oftotal revenues : :

g :EBITDA'from ongomg busmesses rose 23% to $405 m|lhon Ad]usted operatmg profit from ongoing busmesses
. increased 17% to $257 million. EBITDA margm was down from last year to: 25 5% (27
- _i_full year impact oflower margm busmesses acqurred in 2000. i
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capltal expendltures were $239 mnllton for 2001 ($191 mllllon in zooo) Major projects in 2001 lncluded the' P TR
‘ vcompletlon of the Fmanual groups new headquarters in New York ILX's new data center and Omgeos Central A e
Trade Manager pro;ect . ; 2 . . I

o The events of September 1, 2001 at the \X/orld Trade Center dlrectly aﬂ”ected the Fmancxal groups employees” .

g ;'_as well as many of its cllents ‘The-closing. of the stock exchanges for four days and the subsequent slowdownvl‘"" :
inactivity, especnally in: the investment banking and brokerage area, adversely lmpacted the operatmg results Nl

- of the, group Despite_the dlsruptaon caused by the disaster,/ most of the group’s busmess functlons and"
‘product services were unaffected. by this tragedy arid remalned fully operatxonal ! '

ln 2001, the Flnanual gror pﬁlrealrgned |ts busmess to better serve'and target its key customer groups. The
various busmesses are now orgamzed into strateguc customer-facmg umts lnvestment Management
Investment Bankmg, Sales &Tradmg, Corporate and Wealth Management -

e "lnvestment Management :

;Thls group focuses on creatmg solutlons to support both the buy and sell side actlvmes mvolved rthe A
L mvestment management process: Revenue growth was enhanced by the full-year mtegratlon of, lated -
imark b smesses new roduct mmatlves and cost savmgs through technology rattonallzatlon.that liminat

P unched ePlB (Publlc lnformatxon Book) a Web based tool that electromcally collects documents
_assem bllC 2
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Sales & Tradmg

: xmpacted by the economic downturn,
- resulted in slower than: anthIpated sales as weH as mcreased chent cancellatlons

R retall chents




MANAGEM ENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Market Factors and Trends SR

it Jthé‘“ﬁnancial‘rhafketplac
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THOMSON SCIENTIFIC & HEALTHCARE

Overview

‘_’"‘electromc sales of scnentlﬁc and drug mformat products Improve

. and contrlbutxons from acquisitions were pamally offset by the declme in-h
"revenue and investments in. technology in the healthcare sector EBITD
from 25 1% in2000: ‘ / : i '
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Caprta! spendmg in 2001 was $26 mrllron down t'rom $31 mrlhon in 2000. The 2001 expendrtures reﬂec
continued investment in the Healthcare group’s development of a-single eXtensrb!e Markup Language c
reposutory and new lnternet/mtranet dellvery systems capablhtles that will increase product develop' ent

Revenu‘es from ongomg businesses experrenced strong growt in 2001, w1th growth |arge|y attnb table’
patent,subscnptron products and the Web ofSc:ence destmatron site. The group achieved double-digit growth_
led by subscrrptron revenues ofthe Derwent \X/or d Patent nde th

Contents Connect product to create an enhanced Internet/lntranet destrnatlon site provrdmg access'to
ately 8 500 Journals screntlﬁc proceedmgs patents and other scnentlﬁc data As of the end of 200

' ,iRevenues from Derwents genomlc products have mcreased ‘more‘than 1oo°/o over each ow" he. past tw
ge conti al geneti E added to Derwent's

wrdely ¢ m. this.
- Web versrons of |ts products mtroducmg mobrIeM!CROMEDEX tts handheld appllcatlon and addrng c
i ' 'de was launched ) rdmgc
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_ Market Factors and Trends

Major trends that have emerged in the screntlﬁc and healthcare markets over the past few" ears
~ and continue to affect the behavior of customers: :

» Consolidation continues among scientific and healthcare customers. As customer contmue o bUIld scale
they have also become ‘more sophnstlcated and demanding users. of mformatlo | esearch mtensrve
* organizations mcreasmgly are seeking’ multldlsuplmary data that can be fully mtegrated mto thetr interna
databases. In response, the Scxentlﬁc group’ continued to enhance its Internet and- mtranet solutlons by
- incorporating knowledge management tools that will enable it to mtegrate mternal content . The Healthcare
group has modified its focus to. prowde cllnlc Wdecnsmn support systems. t spita r!<e
broad- based commumcatlons so[utmns to the pharmaceutlcal industry. : i

Increasing mdustry competmon in all manufacturmg sectors and the need 08

: market posmons in drug mformatlon global contmumg medlcal educatxon and informa
forthe scnentlﬁc and heaithcare research communltles ' '




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

'LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Fmancral Posmon

At December 31 2001, total assets amounted to $18 402 mrlhon a 17% mcrease from the Decem ‘
balance. of $15,699 million. The increase was. primarily the result of increases to property and equlpment
identifiable intangible assets, goodwull and other non- current assets There were no assets { lated to
discontinued operations at December 31, 2001 (December 31, 2000 $188 million). as. all remammg assets
assocrated with Thomson Newspapers were sold in.2001 >

{ (MIHIOI‘IS of US dollars)

Legal & Regulatory
Learning

Financial

Scientific & Healthcare

Corporate and other

e Corp
; _’compnse cash mvestments and overfunded pensron assets




Cash Flow

Thomson normally Funds dlvxdends debt service costs, cap|tal expend:tures and other: operatx_ req‘uuements
with net cash provided by operating activities. Net cash provided by operating actnvntles for2001 was $1,623 mll_

lion, compared to $1,116 million for 2000. The increase was attributable to the recelpt of i income tax refunds
’ 2001 and a hlgher level of EBITDA partlally oﬁ'set by reduced cash provuded by dnscontmued operatlons :

In Apnl 2001 Thomson sssued $125 mnlhon of extendlble ﬂoatmg rate debe ' g
'\ .45% The maturity of the debenture may be xtended: at

 LIBOR plus 0.55% if the term of the debentures is extended through March 21
- the term is extended through March 20, zoos
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, vrssued Syoo million of 6. 20% notes. due January 5, 2012 under the shelf. At December 31 2001, approxrmately
. Cdn$1 900 mrlhon of debt securmes were avarlable for |ssuance under the shelf

46

‘_loan facnhty exprrmg in Apnl 2002 and a revolvmg hne of credlt faohty expmng in August zoo4 :

At December 31, 2001 $4 838 mllhon 'Nor:9(7% oftotal hedged debt, was denommated in US dollars and, :
vtakmg |nto account interest rate swap agreements, 76% of total hedged debt carned fixed rates. ofwnte

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Under a shelf registration (shelf) filed wrth the securities regulators in Canada and the United States, Thomson 7
may issue, in one or more series, unsecured debt securities up to an aggregate prmcrpal amount of Cdn$3,ooo ‘
million, which may be issued i in Canadran or US dollar denominated securities. In November 2001 Thoms

Addltronally, Thomson mcreased its commercial paper program from Cdn$500 mllhon to CdnSl ;000 M
As of December. 31 2001, Cdn$956 million of commercial paper was outstandmg ' !

At December 3, zoo1 undrawn lines of ¢credit facshtres amounted to $1,792 mullron These mcluded a brldge

shelf. The ne’r proceeds of $397 mllhon were used pnncrpally to repay ex|st|ng mdebtedness and thereby‘
c_redlt avallabllxty under. exrstmg bank facrlltres enablmg the’ Company to cancel rts£$1 500

,obllgatron wunder operatmg lease commrtments amounted to $937 mllhon ‘ln the ordli' ary course ofk usi
uch guarantees generally pro

Based on floating rate debt of $1,202. million at December 31, 2000, 31% change in mterest rates would,mcreas'
or decrease full-year interest expense by approxrmately $12 mrlhon : ;

Based on 2001 results, a one-cent change in either the US dollar/pound sterlmg average exchange ra
us dollar/Canadran dollar average exchange rate would have a neghglble impact on ad;usted operat' gp fit
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: New AccountingStandards e ‘
""" In 200, the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accounta_nts (CICA) issued Handboqk__‘S_f(‘é.‘ction_3_062., “Goodwill : 1!
" and Other Intangible Assets.” Handbook Section 3062 requires that goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite lives no longer be amortized. Instead, those assets are subject to periodic impairment tests. Handbook .

Section 3062 is effective as follows: I i L RS ey

i} For business combinations ‘ocy'c:u>rring before ,.Ju[y 1, 2001, amortization will contmue thil December 31, -~
2001, After that date, carrying amounts of goodwill and identifiable intangible. assets with indefinite useful -
- lives will no longer be amortized; and - it e o Lt o

ii) For business combinations occurring on or after’July 1, 2001, goodwill and identifiable intangible assets with
- indefinite useful lives will not be-amortized: - T e e VL

* lV_Jﬂu»l)‘;. 1};,‘_20‘0’2". A IR
Amended Handboidk S‘é‘ctiof]._'1§5o,if»'quygign? Currency Traﬁslation.":Thé“:amende
" deferral and amortization of foreign currency gains and losses on foreign currenc

“assefs and liabilities. "’

. Thomson has not completed its assessment of the i \pact of adopting Handbook Se
* Guideline AcG13. The first goodwill impai test related to the tr
“Complated by lune 30, 2¢ TheCompan hs determme_dthatthe adoption’of Handbo

ffect on the Company’s financial position or result p

looking on certain aisir
current expectations. These forward-looking statements are subject to @ number of risks and uncertai at coul
‘or events to differ materially from current expectations. Some of the factors that cause actual resiilis or'events to differ ma
. current expectations are: general.global economic conditions; general industry and market conditions and growth rates; un
“whether the Company’s strategies and business plans will yield the expected benefits; the ability of the, Cormpany to effective
. significant acquisitions; increasing competition,. including as a.result of consolidation in certain industries; consolidation of customers,
. suppliers.and service providers: availability. and cost of capital; the ability to identify, develop and. achieve -success for new -
products, services and technologies;.the level of expenditures necessary to maintain the existing quality of products and services; change
_intechnology and laws and regulations that could negatively affect the proprietary nature of certain information utilized by the Company;.
"7 the uncertainties of the Internet, including the Internet economy growing at a slower pace than is anticipated as well as changes in

his discussion and analysis includes forwar

. laws and regulations governing Internet commerce; the. availability of, and ability to retain, key personnel; and changes in laivs and -
regulations with respect to intellectual property rights and tax matters. Additional factors are discussed in the Company’s materials filed "

with the securities regulatory authorities from time 1o time.: The Company disclaims any intentio

. ~ fo | or obligation to tpdate of revise
any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or othenwise. CUR Ry




THE THOMSON CORPORATION'
MANAGEMENT REPORT

The management of The Thomson Corporatlon is responsuble for the accompanying consolidated ﬁnancral,r'
statements and other inforrriation included in the annual report. ‘The financial statements have been prepared.), an
: vm conformrty with'" Canadran generally accepted accountmg principles. using the best estimates-and
5 judgments of mariagement, where appropnate lnformatron presented elsewhere in thxs annual report.is -
con5|stent W|th that in the ﬁnancsal statements i S

L,Management is also responsrble ’r'or a system of mternal control wh'xch is desrgned to- prowde reasonable-’
- assurance that assets are safeguarded habnlltles are’ recognuzed and that the accountmg systems provude
' |me|y nd accurate ﬁnancral reports B : ' o

"‘rreportmg issués, In addmon the Audlt Commlttee recommends to the Board of Drrectors the approval ofthe“ o
‘ "terrm and annual consohda ted ﬁnan i ; e annt ‘ “

: chhard] Harrmgton
- President & N
Chlef Executwe Oﬂ?cer -

February 27, 'z_tjoz ¢
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- ’r,ﬂow for each of the | years_in the two year perlod ended December 31, 2001.. These consolldated ﬁnancnal‘ :

s supporting ! the amounts . and. disclosures in the ﬁnancnal statements An audit.also |

THE THOMSON CORPORATION
AUDITOR’S REPORT .

To the shareholders of The Thomson Carporation

the Corporatlon) as at.’
earnings and of cash

— ‘,<'4.= .

We. have audlted the consohdated balance sheet of The Thomson Corporatlon,
. December 31, 2001-and.2000 and the consohdated statement of earnings and reta

""'statements are the responsnb:hty of the Corporatlons management Our responsnblhty is to express an_.
opm:on on these financial statements based on our aud:ts . ST R e

" We conducted our audits in accordance wuth Canadlan generally accepted au g standards Those ‘
. standards requnre that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable. assurance whether the financial - -
'_istatements are free of matenal misstatement. An audit includes exammmg,;on a test basns evudence' o

. -accounting prmc:ples used and SIgnlﬁcant estlmates made by management as
ﬁnancna{ statement presentatnon : - T

: u_F PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Charfered Accountants Toronto Canada

S February-_zy 2002 -
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" 'See notes. to consolidated finaricial statements.
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THE THOMSON CORPORATION .- ‘ -
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND RETAINED EARNINGS

:“(mil»lions of US dollars, except.ber common share amoqnts)‘ : )
Revenues
Cost of sales, selling, marketing, general and administrative expenses

" Year en’ded»:chémbef‘

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortization,
restructuring charges and Year 2000 costs
Depreciation (note 6)

7,237 6,514
(5.451) (4,980)
1,786 1,534
(476) (416)

Operating profit before amortization, restructuring.charges
and Year 2000 costs

Amortization (notes 7 and 8)

Restructuring charges (note 16)

Year 2000 costs (note 23)

Operating profit after amortization, restructuring charges and Year 2000 costs
Net gains on disposals of businesses and investments

Net interest expense and other financing costs (note 2)

income taxes (naote 3}

Equity in losses of associates, net of tax (note 17)

Earnings before dividends declared on preference shares
Dividends declared on preference shares (note 12)

Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations (note 22)

Earnings attributabie to common shares
Retained earnings at beginning of year

Effect of adoption of accounting standard (note 14)
Dividends declared on common shares (note 13)

749
5943

(439)

Retained earnings at end of year

Basic and diluted earnings per common share (note 4):
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

6,253

$ 1.05
$ o014

Basic and diluted earnings per common share

$ 1.9
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THE THOMSON CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET -

. v - _ : e _'De;i:e‘:mberg-t'“'
(millions of US dollars) - ' S taser. . U000t
. Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 532 337
_ Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $381 (2000 — $285) 1,662 1,522
Inventories (note 5} 256 232
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 313 384
Current assets of discontinued operations (note 22) - 53
- Current assets 2,763 2,528
Property and equipment (note 6) 1,552 1,379
Identifiable intangible assets (note 7) 4,921 4,659
Goodwill (note 8) 7,903 6,171
" Other non-current assets 1,263 827
", Non-current assets of discontinued operations (note 22) - 135

- Total assets 18,402 15,699

" Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

. Liabilities
i Short-term indebtedness 620 312
=" Accounts payable and accruals 1,855 1,626
- Deferred revenue 882 772
-+ Current portion of long-term debt (rote 11) 473 229
" Current liabilities of discontinued operations {note 22) - 26
. Current liabilities 3,830 . 2,965
" Long-term debt (note 11) 3,651 2,321
<+ Other non-current liabilities 1,262 1,264
5 Deferred income taxes (note 3) 1,439 1,284
"¢ Non-current liabilities of discontinued operations (note 22) - 47
. Total liabilities 10,182 7,881
" Shareholders’ equity
Share capital (notes 12 and 13) 2,198 2,035
Cumulative translation adjustment (rote 18) (237) (160)
- Retained earnings 6,253 5,943
Total shareholders’ equity 8,220 7.818
* Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 18,402 15,699

- See notes to consolidated financial statements.

'Appkbved by the Board

M%Mé Kenneth R. Thomson'ﬁ -
. Director .
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THE THOMSON CORPORATION =+ = .-
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW .

_ Year endét) Debembe&gi ) E
(milliéns of US dellars) v ‘ ' - 2001 2000
Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities

Earnings from continuing operations 657 571
Add back {deduct) items not involving cash:
Amortization of development costs and capitalized software (notes g and 10) 104 112
Depreciation (note 6} . 476 416
Amortization (notes 7 and 8) 444 327
Net gains on disposals of businesses and investments (302) (38)
Deferred income taxes (note 3 75 (71)
Equity in losses of associates, net of tax (note 1) 50 -
Other, net 34 9
Changes in working capital and other items (note 20) 78 (331)
Cash provided by operating activities — discontinued operations (rote 22) 7 121
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,623 1,116

Investing activities

Acquisitions of businesses and investments, less cash therein

of $45 million (2000 — $64 million) (note 17) (2,419) (2.824)
Proceeds from disposals of businesses and investments (note 17) 209 387
Additions to property and equipment, less proceeds from disposals

of $16 million {2000 — $17 million) (684) (585)
Other investing activities, net (359) (226)
Proceeds from disposals of newspaper businesses, net of tax (note 22) 239 1.868
Cash used in investing activities - discontinued operations (note 22) (1) (20) *
Net cash used in investing activities (3,015) (1,400)

Financing activities

Proceeds from debt 2,054 200
Repayments of debt (281) (425)
Net borrowings under short-term loan facilities 116 790
Dividends paid on common shares (note 13) (279) {271)
Other financing activities, net (19) -
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,591 294
199 0 -
Translation adjustments (4) (2)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 195 8
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 337
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 532

Supplemiental cash flow information is provided in rotes 2,17 and 20. -
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE THOMSON CORPORATION
SEGMENTED INFORMATION

Thomson is a global provider of integrated information solutions for business and professional customers.
“ Thomson operates in four reportable market:segments mainly in the United States, the United Kingdom.and

Canada (note 24).

- Business Seéments-zéc_n i : PRI LT
el Thn legala . " Scientific & - Corporate ~ . .:

o (mil!ioﬁs of' us dbllars) ; S Regulatory - . Learning ' Finahqial ‘Hiealthca(e“_j and other’ E{im'ipatiionsby F T_oia[ .
o ' Revenues ) 2,827 1,852 1,641 707 242 (32) 7,237
-~ Earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation, amortization,
restructuring charges
and Year 2000 costs 855 402 405 176 (52) - 1,786
|  Depreciation (146)  (42)  (155)  (25)  (3) - (476)
“xn Operating profit before
SR amortization, restructuring
. charges and Year 2000 costs 709 260 250 151 (60} - 1,310
_‘: Additions to capital assets? 592 2,368 353 76 21 - 3,410

Total assets 7,266 5,216

. ‘Business Segments — 2000 E SRR
: : S Scientific &

SR e - S Legalé.- '
.. (millionsof US dollars) "=+ - = Regulatory ' Learning  Financial .- Healthcare .~
" Revenues 2,620 1,405 1,503 743
‘7 Earnings before interest, tax,
' depreciation, amortization,
restructuring charges
and Year 2000 costs 774 345 335 178 (98) - 1,534
* Depreciation {128) (126) {125) (29) (8} - {416)
- Operating profit before
amortization, restructuring
charges and Year 2000 costs 646 219 210 149 (1086) - 1,118
Additions to capital assets? 887 1,235 1,724 83 18 - 3.947
- Assets — continuing operations 7,065 3,000 3,176 945 1,32§ - 15,511
: ~ discontinued operations - - - - 188 - 188
Total assets 7,065 3,000 3,176 945 1,513 - 15,699

1 Corporate and other includes the results of Thomson Media, a non-reportable segment, as well as corporate costs, mindrity interests'and costs
associated with the Campany's stock appreciation rights. Thomson Media's results include revenues.of 3242 million (2000 = $272 million); earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation, amortization, restructuring charges and Year 2000 costs of $12 million (2000 - 843 million) and operating profit before”
amortization, restructuring charges and Year 2000 costs of $4 million (2000 - $35 million). In addition ta Thomson Media assets of $315 million

: {2000 — $408 million), Corparate and other assets include cash, investments and overfunded pension assets. | o e
. 2 Capital assets include property and equipment, identifiable intangible assets and goodwill. RERTIR

See notes to consolidated financial statemnents.
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- THETHOMSON CORPORAﬂON .
. SEGMENTED INFORMATION »
by country of ongm) ‘ '

jGe'ographic"Segméhts—2oor AR LTl
R : United ~ United "> Other

(millions of US do/lé(s), States  Kingdom ~  Canada . countries Eh’mination$ e . :tali :
Revenues 5,943 600 153 632 (91}  7.237
Earnings before interest, tax,

depreciation, amortization,

restructuring charges

and Year 2000 costs 1,570 120 21 75
Depreciation (409) (34 7 (26)
Operating profit before

amortization, restructuring

charges and Year 2000 costs 1,161 36 14 49
Capital assets' 12,3158 1,014 139 908

Total assets 15,217 1,324 587 1,274

ic Segments — 2000 iy
T i - United ©: United i Other

(millions 6f.US dollars) : , ‘. - | . ‘ , C states ngdom Q&nadb__ o ;:éountrieg Eliminations o Totg
Revenues 5,318 497 326 414 (41} 6,514
Earnings before interest, tax,

depreciation, amortization,

restructuring charges

and Year 2000 costs 1,369 84 4 77
Depreciation {(355) {26) (15) (20)
Operating profit before

amortization, restructuring

charges and Year 2000 costs 1,014 58 (1) 57
Capital assets’ 10,091 1,004 155 959
Assets — continuing operations 12,587 1,282 233 1,409

- discontinued operations 110 - 78 -

Total assets 12 697 v 282 311 1,409

B '"Ca al assets mc!ude property and eqmpment xdemnﬁable mtanglble assets and goodwvll

T See notes tobconsohdated ﬁnancnal statements
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THE THOMSON CORPORATION R
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS
(unless othenwise stated, all amounts are in millions of US dollars)

Note LE Summary of' Slgmﬁcant Accountmg Pohc:es

Pnnc:ples of Consolldatmn :

i

Accountmg Est:mates. »

The preparatlon oFﬁnanc:avl statements in, conformlty with generally accepted accountmg pr




" THE THOMSON CORPORATION R
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i nvestm en ts

The equlty method cfaccountmg is used to account for mvestments in busmesses over which Thomson has the' ablhty to
exercise srgmﬁcant influence. Under the equity r method investments are initially recorded at cost'and the carrying amounts
_are ad)usted to reﬂect the Companys share”of net: earnmgs or losses of the mvestee compames and.are reduced by
: d|v1dend S recerved o : L

: 'Property and Equtpment

Property and equxpment are recorded at cost and deprecxated on a stratght Ime basus over therr est
as’ follows S . EER T

Buildings and building improvements 5- 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 years
Computer hardware 3-5years
lnternal-use computer software 3-10years

mstruments are sub;ect to the risk of loss from changes in exchange and mterest rates. these Iosses
the exposurevs bein hedged : :

56
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; Revenue Recogmtran

' ’Drscrete Products

carry no further substantive performance oblrganons on.the part of the Company after shrpment) are recogmzed when.
) dehvery has occurred and srgmﬁcant nsks and rewards of ‘ownership have transferred to the customer provrded that the
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Deferred Income Taxes o

Deferred income taxes are determmed based on the dlﬁerences between the ﬁnancral reportmg and tax bases of assets,and
liabilities usmg the enacted or substantially enacted rates expected to apply to. taxable income. in the years in whxch those

and l|ab|||t|es

Recently !ssued Accountmg Standards

amortized. Instead,
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AcC13. The first goodwill lmpaument test related to the transition to Handbook Section 3062 must be com.pieted by June 3o,
2002. The Company has determined that the adoption of Handbook Sections 3870 and 1650 will have no. matenal effect on
" -the Company s financial posmon or results ofoperanons : )

. Comparative Amounts

_Where necessary, certain amounts for 2000 have been reclassnﬁed to conform to the current years presentatron Reportabie
segments for all penods have been reclasstﬁed to exclude the operatlons and other balances ofa newly formed operatlng'

" interest income 20 17
% Interest on short-term indebtedness (25) (21)
"+ Interest on long-term debt (231) (200)

Note 3 lncome Taxes

Components of the provision for iricome taxes are as follows

L Current income tax provision from continuing operations (93) (56)
| Deferred income tax (provision) benefit from continuing operations (75) 71

i Income tax (provision) benefit

. assets and hablhtles at December 31 are as follows

Liabitities for differences between book 3nd tax bases of assets
Total other assets, net of other liabilities

"Net deferred income tax liability
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THE THOMSON CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS .

The Canadian corporate tax rate is approximately 40%’ (2000 - 44%). The-following is a reconcmanon of income taxes
calculated at the Canadnan corporate tax rate to the income tax (provision) benefit: g
;oo1 _ 2000

Earnings before taxes' 902 584
Income taxes at the Canadian corporate tax rate (363) (259)
Differences attributable to:
Non-deductible goodwill amortization (43) (69)
Effect of income recorded at rates lower than the Canadian tax rate 212 222
Recording of net operating losses not previously recorded 8 124
Other, net 18 (3)
lncome tax (provrsmn) beneﬁt on contmumg operations (1 68)

15

* Represcnzs earmings from con:mumg aperanons before dividends dcclared on prcj'ercncz shares equrty in fosses of assoc:a:zs and income tax\es

Thomson and its: subsrdcanes have certain tax loss carryforwards the beneﬁt of whlch has not been recorded in, the
- financial statements Such tax loss carryforwards, approxlmate 5580 million, the majority of which. expxre between 003 |
‘and 2008 with the remamder havmg an indefinite hfe The abnl:ty to realize these benefits is' dependent upon a number of-
factors, including the future proﬁtabrhty ofoperatron in the jurisdictions,in which the tax Iosses arose.”

Note 4 Earmngs per Comvmon Share“

per common share and the diluted earnmgs per common share computatlons is presented below

- 2001

Basic ' 627 747,972 623,242,191
Effect of stock incentive plans 491,494 534,114
623,776,305

Diluted 628,239,466

Note5 Inventones S

Inventories conSIst ofthe foHowmg:

Work in process
Finished goods
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“Note 6: Property and Equipment

Land, buildings and building improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Computer hardware

internal-use computer software

" Accumulated depreciation

i computer software

“Note 7: Identiﬁa'lilé |r;tangib|e AsSéts

. Identifiable intangible assets
. Accumulated amortization

" The amortization 'chargé in 2001 was $257 rﬁil[ioﬁ {2000 - $167 million).

' Note 8: Goodwill

: " Goodwill v - 8.6}9 6,777
"1 Accumulated amortization (776} . (606)
7,903 6,171

The’amérti;atioh _;harge in '279'91,“yva_s $187 million (2000 ~ $160 million). .

"‘ Note 9: Development Costs

Informatlon relating to development costs associated with internal ventures is as follows '

Expenditures
Development costs capitalized
Amortization of amounts previously capitalized

Net expense

'Other non-current assets incldde $36 million (2000 = $110 million) of unamortized deferred dgvé_ldpment‘-cbstsi. :
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Note 10: Capitalized Software Intended to be Marketed

2001
Capitalized software 115
Accumulated amortization (s5)

60

" The amortization charge in 2001 was $25 million (2000 — $13 million).

-

Note m Finanyciel‘lnstrun‘de'n'tsj., :
_Carrymg Amounts

Amounts recorded in the consohdated balance sheet are referred to as carrying amodntsf"and ere based o_n.wp
exchange rates, as apphcable - : ’ '

estimated_ amounts at which the Company would have to settle aH outstanding contracts on December 31. The fair. values; 4
‘ 'of publicly traded Iong term investments are based on.quoted ' market prlces The falr values of prlvately held Iong-term‘“"

interest rate on thls debt was 2.3% (2000 5. 9%).
. 3

62 R i : ' : " ST A R




- Long-term Debt

The following is a summary ofldﬁ’g-‘tberm debtf )

it As at December 11, 2001 ' o T Carrying amount o .+ Fairyalue
Primary Currency Primary Currency

debt swap Hedged debt swap Hedged
instruments  instruments debt instruments  instruments debt
Bank and other 590 2 592 50 10 600
7.90% Debentures, due 2002 . 157 53 210 163 45 208
7.70% Debentures, due 2003 157 39 196 168 26 194
-+ 9.15% Debentures, due 2004 157 25 132 175 2 177
. 7.95% Debentures, due 2005 157 29 186 172 10 182
6.20% Debentures, due 2006 157 9 166 163 10 173
- 7.35% Debentures, due 2006 157 28 185 167 12 179
6.50% Debentures, due 2007 157 23 180 161 12 173
© 6.55% Medium-term notes, due 2007 283 13 296 291 12 303
- 6.90% Medium-term notes, due 2008 251 9 260 260 6 266
© 6.85% Medium-term notes, due 20m 251 3 254 252 7 259
6.20% Notes, due 2012 700 - 700 674 - 674
Floating rate notes 125 - 128 125 - 125
Private placements, due 2002 -2010 575 - 575 612 - 612
* Redeernable preference shares fnote 21) 250 - 250 250 - 250
4,124 233 4,357 4,223 152 4,375

~ Current portion (473) (56) (529)

3,651 177 3,828

", As at December 31, 2000 o Carryingamount < e Fairyalue’
- Primary Currency Primary Currency
debt swap Hedged debt swap Hedged
e instruments instruments debt instruments instrurments debt
- Bank and other 756 11 767 756 11 767
|, 10.55% Debentures, due 2001 167 49 . 216 169 47 216
© 7.90% Debentures, due 2002 167 43 210 172 37 209
+ 7.70% Debentures, due 2003 167 29 196 175 20 195
* 9.15% Debentures, due 2004 167 15 182 183 (3) 180
7.95% Debentures, due 2005 167 19 186 179 5 184
7.15% Debentures, due 2006 167 18 185 175 3 183
-+, 6.50% Debentures, due 2007 167 13 180 163 9 177
Private placements, due 2001 -2010 625 - 625 645 - 645
2,550 197 2,747 2,622 134 2,756
Current portion {229) {49) (278)
2,321 148 2,469

. 63
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. 'lnterest Rate Rlsk Exposures o »

o 'Thomson enters mto mterest rate swap agreements to reduce the |mpact of changes in interest rates Upon issuance, the__ -

64

. 2002 3323 mllhon in 2003, $7o4 m|H|on in 2004, S3n mllhon in zoos, 5651 mrlhon in 2006 and $1 839 mnlhon thereafter

'used to repay exrstmg mdebtedness which created sufﬁcxent cred|t avallabdnty under exnstmg bank facnhtres”
to cancel its St,soo mlillon bridge Ioan faaluty in January 2002. ’

“to credlt loss. The. fair value of interest rate swap agreements as at December 31, 2001 was $75 million ‘in fayor of the

THE THOMSON CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The floating rate notes will mature on March 20, 2003 and are subject to extension by the holders for additienal one-year
periods from March 20, 2003 to March 22, 2004 and from March 22, 2004 to March 21, 2005. Interest, which is payable”
quarterly, is equal to USS$ LIBOR plus (i) 0.45% for the period from issuance through March 19, 2003, (i) 0.55% for the pe“riod
from March 20, 2003 through March 21, 2004, and {(iii) 0.65% for the periad from March 22, 2004 through March 20, 2005.

Bank and other debt at December 31, 2001 and 2000 is primarily US dollar denominated. The debentures and medlum term
notes are Canadian dollar denominated and are fully hedged into US dollars. The 6.20% Notes, floating rate notes, private
p!acements and redeemable preference shares are US dollar denommated After taking account of hedging arrangements,
the carrying amount of long-term debt, all of which is un§ecured is denominated in the following currencies:

. 2001 " - 2000

US dollar . 4,231 2,664
Other currencies 126 83

4-357

Maturmes of !ong term debt after accountmg for hedges in each of the next five years and thereafter are: $529 (T'(I”IOH in

Company converts certain fixed rate non-US dollar denomihated debt to US dollar floating rate debt via the use ofcurrencyr
swap mstruments The use of interest rate swaps converts the debt back to fixed rates. The notional amount of interest.rate
swap agreements is used to measure interest.to be pald or recelved and does not represent the amount of exposure,_'

counterpartles (2000 $21 m||I|on in favor of the counterpartles) The Companys notional amounts ofmterest rateNSWaps‘ .
related to long term debt as at December 31,2001 are summanzed as follows: ,
' ‘Maturing in:

Less than 1year 110 § years

Notional amounts of interest rate swaps v 156 1,093
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After taking account of hedgmg arrangements the fixed and floating mix oﬂcng -term debt is as follows

. . Average » ' S Average : : :
S _ 2001 . _interest rate % Share -2000 fnterest rate % Share
+. Total fixed 3,760 6.6% 86% 2,103 6.9% 77%
Total floating 597 3.7% 14% €44 6.5% 23%
4,357 6.2% 100% 2,747 6.8% 100%

: Includmg the effect of short term' mdebtedness, the proportlon of fixed to ﬂoatmg rate debt is 76% to. 24% respectrvely .
Floatmg interest rate long -term debt is. LIBOR based and consequently, |nterest rates are: reset penodrcall . i

Hedges of Net Investments in Fore:gn Aﬂihates

Durmg 2001, Thomson determmed that certam of its mvestments had expenenced Iosses in value that were other tha
- temporary. A reduction in the carrying values:of those investments of $100 million for the year endmg December 31, 2001
“is included in “Net gains on disposals of busmesses and investments” in the consolldated statement of earnmgs and -
' retamed earnings. No such losses were mcurred durmg the year ended December 3, zooo R
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y ‘Serres i, Cumulatwe Redeemable Preference Shares

' Serres V Cu u atwe Redeemab!e Preference Shares

THE THOMSON CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 12 Preference Share Capltal : . R
, - 2007 i»-. SR . -o2000

] Nurnber of shares Stated caprtal Number of shares  Stated capital

Series 1 6,000,000 110 6,000,000 110
Series V 18,000,000 332 18,000,000 332
442 442

The authorized preference share capital of Thomson is an unlimited number of preference shares without par value. The
directors are authorized to issue preference shares WIthout par va|ue in one or more series, and to determine the number .

. of shares m, and terms attaching to, each such senes

The Series ] preference shares aré noh-voting and are redeemable at the optton of Thomson for Cdn$25.00 per share
together wrth dccried, dIVldendS Dwndends are payable quarter[y atan annual rate of 70% of the Canadian bank pnme rate
apphed to the stated capltal of such shares The total number oFauthonzed Series If preference shares is 6 000,000.

iy 'preference or prior ty"

= Thomson Common Shares
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 weighted average price at which the common shares traded on The Toronto Stack Exchange during the five’ tradmg days

wmdmg up of the Company

on’ Share Capltal and Dwrdends

2001 G000 L

gy R S Number of shares Starcri capital . g Nu_mher of shares
Balance at beginning of year 625,764,085 1,593 621,393,384
Issued 4,976,564 163 4,370,701

Redemption of related Thomson PLC shares - - -
Issuance of Thomson PLC “A” ordinary shares - - -

Balance at end ofyear 630,740.649 1,756 525,764,085
The common shares which have no par value are votmg shares The authonzed common share capltai ofThomson is an- :
unlimited number of shares. : ' '

Holders of the common shares may part;cxpate in the Dividend Remvestment Plan (DRIP) under which cash leldends are = i
automatically'reinvested'in new common shares having a-value equal to the cash dividend. Such shares are valied at the -~ 2

nmmedlately preceding the record date for such dividend. Share issuances made in 2001 consxsted of DRIP of 3160 million’ :
(zooo 5156 mllhon) and $3 m|IIxon oFstock optlons that were, exercnsed ;




" Thomson PLC “A” Ordrnary Sharesw_‘. i

- Thomson PLC Common Shares , v oy
Holders of 5,574, 476 of Thomson common shares (2000 = 5.999.257) also hold the same number of related common
shares of The Thomson Corparation PLC (Thomson PLC) with a par value of one sterlmg penny each. The. holders" A
of these shares have the alternative to receive their dividends in pounds sterlmg from Thomson PLC. Durrng 2001, " i
429,164 (2000 - 226 1649,141) of the Thomson PLC shares were redeemed ‘at par.for less than $0.1 million’ in:aggregate -
{2000~ $3 million), The majonty of the 2000 redemptrons were accounted for by The Woodbrldge Company errted

- (Woodbndge) and its: afﬁlrates (see note 21) . : T : : : L

In 2000, Thomson PLC issued 10 982,764 A ordrnary shares with 2 par value of. four sterlmg pence each 6 Woodbndge
out of 15 million shares available to be issued (see note21). Such shares are entitled to 5% of the votes. at general meetings
of the shareholders of Thomson PLC and may be redeemed by Thomson PLC at any time after ]anuary ¥ 2004 at their | pa :
value. Dividends on these shares rank pari passu with dividends on the ordinary shares of Thomson PLC and cannot'
_ exceed 5% of the par value thereof, and the holder cannot I’ECEIVE by way of payment on wmdmg up or’ return of capi
amount in excess ofsuch par value - '

‘ “contributio mployee future benefit pIans covering substantially
employees Effective January 1, 2000, Thomson changed its method of accountmg for employee future‘beneﬁts'tb coniform
. with the requirements of CICA Handbook Section 3461, “Employee Future Benefits." Under the ne od, costs for all
~ employee future benefits are accrued over the perlods in which employees earn the beneﬁts : '

The change was applied retroactively, on a cumulative adjustment basis, with no restatement of prror ﬁnancral statements
As a result of the adoption, at January 1, 2000, liabilities for employee future benefits wer mcreased by 5118 mllh
and retained earnings were decreased by $78 mrlllon net of tax. The adoption of the new standard had no matenal

impacton earnlngs
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Defined Beneﬁt Plans. - .- - -

Thomson sponsors deﬁned beneﬁt plans provrdmg pensron and other post-retrrement beneﬁts to substantlally all em,
The costs of defined benefit plans are actuarially determined usmg the proyected benefits method prorated on sé e and
management's best estimates of expected plan mvestment performance increases in salaries, and ages ofemployees upon
retirement. For the purpose of calculating the expected. return on plan assets ‘those assets are valued at falr value. Past.
service costs from plan amendments are amortized on a stralght -line basrs over'the average remammg service” perrod of'
- employees active at the date of the amendment. The excess.of net actuanal gam (loss) over 10% of the greater ofthe beneﬁt
cbhgatlon and the falr value of the plan assets is amortrzed over the average Temaining service perlod of active employees i

The followmg sxgmﬁcant werghted average actuarial assumptlons were employed to determme the penodrc pension: and
post- -retirement plans expense and the accrued beneﬁt oblrgatlons g - ‘

Pens:ons T : Other post-retirement plans =

. T o0 ~ " 2000 2001
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.9% 5.0%
Discount rate 6.8% 7.2%

Rate ofcompensation increase 4.9% 4.8%

"The Companys net deﬁned beneﬁt plan expense (mcome) is compnsed ofthe followmg element :

»Pe_nsnons
- - 2001 7 2000
Current service cost 32 32
Interest cost 101 95
Expected return on plan assets (140) {130}
Amortization of net transition obligation 2 2
Amortization of net actuarial gains (3) )
Amortization of prior service cost 2 -
Nen-routine events 14 (6)

Change in valuation allowance provided
against accrued benefit asset

Net defined benefit plan expense (income)

related S the sale ofThe Globe and Marl and other Thomson Newspapers operatrons (see note 22)

' The non routine events recorded in 2001 in connectron with other post 3 irement plans consrst ofa curtallment gainof ..
k3| mllllon related to the sale of The. Globe and Mail and other Thomson Newspapers operatrons In 2000, the Company .
recorded a settlement gam of $6 mrlhon related to the sale ofThomson Newspapers operatrons (see note 22).




Pensions

L ‘ _ 2001 © 2000
Accrued benefit obligation
Beginning accrued benefit obligation 1,411 1,369 78 66
Current service cost 32 32 1 !
Interest cost 101 95 6 5
Employee contributions 4 5 - 1
Actuarial losses 49 10 11 16
Non-routine events (6) (3} (1) (s}
Acquisitions, net 46 20 5 -
Benefits paid (81) (72) (7) (6)
Translation adjustments (21) (45) - -
" Ending accrued benefit obligation 1,535 1,411 93 78
- Plan assets
G ~ Beginning fair value of plan assets 1,750 1612 - -
Actual (loss) return on plan assets (203) 233 - -
Employer contributions 14 1" 7 5
- Employee contributions 4 5 - 1
. Benefits paid (81) (72) 7) ()
- Acquisitions, net 8 1 - -
Translation adjustments (24) (50) - -
Ending fair value of plan assets 1,468 1,750 - -
Funded status — (deficit) surplus 67) 339 (93) (78)
Unamortized net actuarial loss (gain) 167 (233) (12) (26)
Unamortized past service costs 13 2 - (1)
Unamortized net transitional obligation - 2 - -
~ Fourth quarter activity 3 3 2 i
© Accrued benefit asset (liability) 116 113 (103) (104)
~ Valuation allowance

(32) (37) : - -

Accrued benefit asset {liability),
net of valuation allowance

9% at Décember 31, 2001.

84




70

: anark Corporatron

THE THOMSON CORPORATION , o
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS

Defined Contrlbutron Plans ' e g

The Company ‘and its subsrdrarles sponsor varlous deﬁned contrrbutron savmgs p!ans that have provrsrons for company-v
marchmg contrrbutrons Total expense related to deﬁned contribution’ plans was $62 mrlhon in 2001 (2ooo 543 mrlhon)

Note 15: Contingencies and Commitments

Claims and Legal Acttons

At December 31, 2001, certam lawsurts and other claxms in the normal course of busmess were pending agamst Thomson

wrltten request from the general partners Addltxonally, the Company is a party toa Jomt ven
the Company to contnbute a maxrmum of 529 illio the next five years condltvonal

The followmg table presents an analysrs oFthe total charges mcurred by group

' : - : , Lo 2001 .
Legal & Regulatory 8
Learning 20
Financial -
Scientific & Healthcare 2
Corporate and other -




payable and accruals” and “Other non- -current liabilities” in the consolidated balance sheet from ]anuary 1 2000 throug
December 31, 2001; s

Type of cost 2000 activity 2001 a&tivity .
Balance Balance Balance
07/01/00 Charges Utilization 12/31/00 Charges Utilization 12/31/01
Capital asset write-offs 4 (4) - - - -
Severance 7 28 (22) 13 15 (7 1
- Contract cancellation costs 5 2 (2) 5 9 (2) 12
" Other exit costs - 3 (2) 1 6 (3) 4
12 37 (30) 19 (22) 27

Allecations related 1o certain acquisitions may be subject to adjustment pending final valuation.

- Harcourt :
Cash and cash equivalents 1 44 45 64
Accounts receivable 83 30 113 269
Inventory 20 4 24 13
- Prepaid expenses and other current assets 8 6 14 43
Property and equipment 45 15 60 230
Identifiable intangible assets 371 63 434 617
Goodwill 1,972 244 2,216 2,498
- Other non-current assets 2§ - 25 33
- Total assets 2,52% 406 2,931 3,767
- Accounts payable and accruals {276) (47) (323} (417)
- Deferred revenue (97) (43) {(140) (190)
Other non-current liabilities (92) (21) (113) (383)
" Total liabilities (465) (111) (576) (950}
Net assets 2,060 2G5 2,355 2,777
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The followmg summarlzes ma;or acquisitions:

'Date . LT 'Company IR - o Descnpt:on ;

THE THOMSON CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS

investrhents are mcluded in “Other non-current assets” in the consohdated balance sheet

Addltlonally, the Company recorded reserves related to acqwsmons consummated durmg 2001 totahng 565 mlllxon Those ‘
reserves, which were recorded in accordance with EIC-114, comprise the followmg costs: : ‘

Type of cost N ) ' Initial reserve Utilization
Severance and other employee-related costs 38 (1o
Lease canceilation and idle facility costs . 20

Other exit costs 7
65

faollty costs and $4 mslhon relates to other exit costs

September 2001 NewsEdge Corporation A provider of real time news and information
products and services to corporations and
professional service firms worldwide.

July 2001 Harcourt General Inc. (select businesses) Higher education and lifelong learning businesses.
June 2001 First Call Corporation A provider of real-time, commingled broker
(acquired 48% minority interest research, analyst estimates, workflow and
not previously owned by Thomsen) technology-based solutions.
September 2000 Primark Corporation A provider of financial and economic informatien

preducts and solutions to financial, corporate
and governmental decision-makers globally.

September 2000 The Carson Group A financial information organization specializing
in global shareholder research and related
advisory services.

May 2000 Dialog’s Information Services Division An online information service provider.

March 2000 Prometric A provider of computer-based testing and
assessment services.
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In 2007, cash consideration of $2,189 million was paid for acquisitions consummated after june 30?" 2001. Thase acquisitidns
are subject to the provisions of CICA Handbook Section 3062, which requires that goodwnll and identifiable lntanglble Ul
assets with indefinite useful lives not be amortized. In connection with those acquisitions, goodwﬂl of $2,106 million and
identifiable mtang|ble assets of $4oo million were recorded. The identifiable mtanglble assets are summar:zed as foHows

Weighted-average =
st oo amortization.
) Harcourt Other o Total . period (years)
Finite useful lives:
Tradenames - 11 n 17
Customer relationships 50 6 56 6
Databases and content 201 - 201 15
Other - 5 5 8
251 22 273
indefinite useful lives:
Tradenames 120 7 127

37 29 400

e o Non-cash Asset Exchanges

o In November 2001 Thomson exchanged assets wrth a falr market value esnmate‘
: ’conﬁderatlon ofSlo mllhon for an mvestment ini- Deal a partnershlp whlch WI“ automa

~ certain lands to be contributed to BGM on or before March 31, 2002. There will be no rmpact Aconsohdated eamm‘
" in connection with this future, contribution, as the fands are recorded at estnmated fzur value as- of December 31, 200
", As discussed in note 21, Woodbrtdge is an investor in BGM. '
In 2000, Thomson disposed ofa busmess valued at 549 million via a non- cash exchange The resultmg Ioss of $9 million
on this dlsposal is included wnthm “Net gains on dlsposals of busmesses and mvestments" in the consohdated statement

: of earnings and retamed earnings in 2000. - S :

P
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Disposals

in 2001, Themson received $209. million (2000 5387 mvlllon) cash consideration fram the dlsposals of busmesses and S
. investments within the following segments RS S .
: 2001 V. z2000

Legal & Regulatory - -

Learning 53 76
Financial 49 5
Scientific & Healthcare . 105 231
Corporate and other 2 75

209 387

In April 2001, Thomson sold Jane’s Informatron Group to a subsrchary of Woodbridge (see note 21). Thomson retarned a -l .
financial advisor that provided a fairmness opinion on the sale price of $110 million. Accordmg!y, the transactron was .
recorded at this determined fair value. The gain on disposal of $8o million is included in ”Net gains on dlsposals of |
busmesses and mvestments" inthe consohdated statement of earnings and retamed earmngs ’ :

Note 18 Cumulatlve Translatlon Ad]ustment

An analysis of the cumulatlve translatron ad;ustment shown separately in shareholders equ:ty in the consohdated balanc
sheet is ds. follows ; e

Balance at beginning ofyearv h (160)
Realized from disposals of businesses 66
Translation (137)

Balance at end ofyear

Note 19 Stock-based Compensatlon -

Stock Apprecratton nghts Plan

,appllcable penod At December 31, 2001, the authonzed number of SARs was 20 soo ooo and there were 3 261 .870 umt i
. available for grant Thomson. recognlzed a benefit of $14 mllhon related to the SAR pian for the year ended December
2001 (2000 $55 million expense) in the consolidated statement ofearmngs and retained earnings.
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A summary of the status of the Thomson SAR plan as of December 31, 2001 and 2ooo, and changes durmg the years o

: ended on those dates is as follows: ~ : ‘ _ _
‘ 2001 - ' 2000

Canadian $ Canadien$ A
weighted-average weighted-average
SARs exercise price SARs exercise price
" Qutstanding at beginning of year 4,393,204 31.11 5,507,854 28.28
e o Granted 225,117 48.45 377,940 47.28
e L Exercised : (675,837) 27.46 (1,148,398) 25.30
S it Cancelled (517,740) 30.14 {(744.192) 25.81
- Outstanding at end of year 3,424,744 33.01 4,393,204 31

Exercisable at end of year 1,710,169 30.23 1,344,958 29.09

" - The following table summarizes information on SARs outstanding at December 31, 2001: "

SARs exerasable b, e

_ o b _SARs Qutetdndihg R

"% Canadian § Number Weighted-average Canadian § Number Canadmn s
5. range of outstanding remaining weighted-average exercisoble weighted-average
"k exercise prices at 12/31/01 contractual life exercise price at 12/31/01 exercise price
16.00 ~17.25 36,700 2.3 17.04 26,200 16.98
21.77 ~ 32,125 1,327,453 3.9 22.6% 798,311 22.88

. 35:00-44.50 1,674,534 6.6 37.36 845,432 36.30
4840 - 57-45 386,057 9.5 52.18 40,226 57.40

“[v«Stock lncentwe Plan -

On January 24 2000, the Board of Directors approved the adoptlon of a stock mcentlve plan As of December 31,,2001
- there were 12,772,187 shares available for grant (2000 - 15,540,940). A summary of the status of the stock mcentwe plan
as, of December 3, 2001 and 2000, and changes durm the years ended on those dates is'as Follows :

-.-2001 oty

Canadidd 5 : Canadian §

weighted-average weighted-average

5 Options exercise price Optians exercise price
Qutstanding at beginning of year 4,459,060 50.02 - -
: Granted 2,939,453 48.45 4,511,560 49.91
Exercised {100,000} 41.00 - -
Cancelled (170,700) 4718 (52,500) 41.00

", OQutstanding at end of year 7,127,813 49.56 4,459,060 50.02

* Exercisable at end of year 932,781 51.42 : -
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The following table summarizes information on stock options outstanding at December 31, 2001

._leote 20: Supplemental Cash Flow information

’ Detalis of“Changes in workmg caprtal and other items” in the consolldated statement of cash ﬂow are:

’_Note 21 Related Party Transactrons A

' |n February 2001, 2 subsrdrary' of Woodbndge purchased 5250 mrlhon of' preferred shares of a subsrdr

: preference shares were included within “Long-term debt” in the consolidated balance: sheet, as they were reﬁnanced in’

THE THOMSON CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Options outstanding ‘ Options exerctsable

Canadian § Number Weighted-average Canadian § Number Canadian S
range of outstanding remaining weighted-average exercisable weighted-average
exercise prices at 12/31/01 contractual life exercise price at 12/31/01 exercise price
41.00 - 44.40 1,771,800 8.1 47.02 332,400 41.00
45.90 — 48.40 2,828,283 3.9 48.37 - -

50.25 — 57.45 2,527,730 5.0 56.89 600,381 57.19

) _ 2001 2000
Accounts receivable {50) (42)
Inventories (3)

Prepaid expenses and other current assets {17)
Accounts payable and accruals (13)
Deferred revenue (s)
Income taxes 226
Other {60)

: Through Woodbndge and ats afﬁllates ‘the Thomson famlly owns approxrmately 73% of the common s h:

whrch pay annua! cumulative dividends’ at 4.6%. In- February 2002, the shares were exchanged fora sﬂep,
issuance in the same face amount. These new shares pay a fixed annual dividend at 4.5%, and are redeemable at the option
of either Woodbridge or the Company beginning February 2006 and annually thereafter. At December '3, 2

February 2002 wrth new preference shares due in 2006.

Q4




On January 9. 2001, Thomson completed a transaction with BCE Inc. and Woodbridge i in which Thomson exchanged its
interest in The Globe and Mail and other related assets for a 20% equity interest ina new multrmedra company, Bell
Globemedia Inc. (see note 17}. Woodbndge holds a g. 9% interest in Bell Clobemedla Inc.

in October 2000, Woodbridge subscribed in cash for1o 982 764 "A” ordinary shares ofThomson PLC wrth a par va!ue offour o
B sterhng pence each for $0.6 million. In November 2000, Thomson PLC redeemed 226 223,830 of the common shares of'_i_,
Thomson PLC he|d by Woodbndge and its afﬁhates at their aggregate redemptron pnce at(par for 3 m‘nlhon (see note 13) Lo

Note 22: Dlscontmued Operatlons

‘On February 15, zooo, Thomson announced |ts mtentron to sell the newspaper mterests ofThomson Newspapers (TN
The primary actrvrtres oFTN were the publlshmg of daily and non-dally newspapers and other advertrsmg and specralty .
publications in the us and Canada The results cash flows, and assets and habllxtres of TN have been accounted for as’ a

+discontinued ‘operation. : : p

: Durlng zooo Thomson sold 51 ofthe 54 pubhcatrons that had prevnously been |dentrﬁed for. sale for proceeds.of 32 473 ml”lO
'Durihg 2001, the remammg ‘three publications . were sold For proceeds of $121 ‘million. Addltxonally, ’ hovmson sold its.
50% interest.in Augusta Newsprmt Company, a newsprint mlll in Augusta Georgra to. Woodbndge For $1go millior
lThomson retamed a ﬁnancnal adwsor that provrded a Falrness opmron on the sales’ price: Accordmgly,.the saiewofAugusta

The earnmgs from drscontmued operatrons are summarrzed below

Revenues from discontinued operations 135 592

., Earnings from operations before income taxes 27 62
7 Income taxes (12) -
Earnings frem operations 15 62

- Gain on sale of discontinued operations 173 1,053
Tax on gain (96) (463)

. Net gain on sale of discontinued operations 77 590

' Earnings from discontinued operations 92 652

' rrent assets of drscontmued opera i
goodwvll ;

concerns existed that any computer having time- sensmve software may not have accurately recognlzed the turn‘of the
century. As Thomson incurred. costs to address the Year 2000 issue, costs relatmg to maintenance and. modrﬁcatron ‘were
expensed as mcurred whﬂe the costs of new hardware and software WIth future beneﬁts were caprtahzed and are bemg




THE THOMSON CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 24 Segmented Informatlon

Sée pages 53 and 4. » : . _ Ry
The reportable segments of Thomson are strategrc business groups that oﬂ’er products and services to target markets
The accounting pohcres applied by the segments are the same’ as those apphed by the Company The Companys Four
reportable segments are: - , i : :

i Legal & Regulatory

Prowdmg mtegrated mformatlon and solutions to legal, tax, accountmg, mtellectual property comphance and busmess
nprofessr nalwh___ PRSI : S ‘ .

' Learnmg

o and busmesses

o ;Finq'n'cial

) '_L_Sectlon 3465, "lncome Taxes prevuously recorded’ wrthm the Cor
“to the respectxve market groups : g
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THE THOMSON CORPORATION
SIX-YEAR SUMMARY
(unaudited)

{millions of US dollars,

except per common share amounts) ) - . 2001 2000 1999 ' 19>98 ATy B - 1996 B
Revenues
Legal & Regulatory 2,827 2,620 2,375 2,216 1,675 1,443
* Learning 1,852 1,405 1,059 1,060 1,110 1,087
Financial 1,641 1,503 1,213 1,131 336 763
Scientific & Healthcare 707 743 806 755 725 755
Corporate and other’ 242 272 259 236 206 175
Eliminations . (32) {29) - - - .
7,237 6,514 5752 5398 4.952 4,223
EBITDA?
Legal & Regulatory 855 774 706 655 567 353
Learning 402 345 258 250 241 256
Financial 405 335 314 305 274 203
Scientific & Healthcare 176 178 174 162 158 153
Corporate and other’ (52) (g8) (45) (30) (42) (24)
v 1,786 1,534 1,407 1,342 1,198 941
.. Operating profit (loss) before amortization®
: Legal & Regulatory 709 6456 578 51% 481 287
. Learning 260 219 149 151 144 165
- Financial 250 210 212 224 201 140
" Scientific & Healthcare 151 149 135 124 124 129
. Corporate and other’ (60) (106) (53) (36) (47) (28)
: 1,310 1,118 1,021 978 883 693
""i Earnings from continuing operations 657 571 409 314 301 197

T Basic and diluted earnings per common
share from continuing operations $1.05 So0.92 5 0.66 $0.51 Sos50 . 50.33

"+ Supplemental information

_ Earnings from continuing operations as above €57 571 409 314 301 197
* Adjust: one-time items, net of tax,

resulting from net (gains) losses on

disposals of businesses and investments,

restructuring charges and Year 2000 costs (206) 2 52 90 (15) 8
One-time tax benefits - {105} - - - -
" Adjusted earnings from continuing operations 451 463 461 404 286 205

Adjusted basic and diluted earnings per
common share from continuing operations $0.72 $o0.75 S0.75 $0.66 S 0.47 S o. 34

1 Corporate and other includes the results of Thomsan Media, a non- reportable segment, as well as ccrporate costs mmonty interests and costs

 assaciated with the Company’s stock appreciation rights. R

2 Before restructuring charges in 2001, 2000 and 1999 of 330 mllhon 337 million and 538 million, respectlve!y. and Year zooo costs in zoco, lggo S
and 1998 of $4 million, 391 million and $65 million, respecnvely All amounts are pre-tax. : . e

exclude Thomsaon Regional Newspapers...
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THE THOMSON CORPORATION

SUM MARIZED QUARTERLY IN FORMATIGN

(unaudnted)

L . Quarter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended 7 ; ;O_Qa;g:e:r»‘éﬁded
(millions of US dollars.." March 31 - June 30 September 30 December 3.
except per common share amounts) 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 . 72000 -
Revenues
Legal & Regulatory 618 505 683 637 691 664 835 813
Learning 241 183 312 279 676 489 622 437
Financial 401 250 405 257 393 288 391 406
Scientific & Healthcare 157 146 161 155 160 148 219 204 -
Corporate and other’ 54 53 71 79 54 62 63 78 o
Eliminations {9) - {7) (7) (9) (8) (7) (14)

1,462 1,137 1,625 1,400 1,965 1,643 2,123 1,924 -
Disposals? 35 126 10 95 12 8g 5 100
1,497 1,263 1,635 1,495 1,977 1,732 2,128 2,024
EBITDA®
Legal & Regulatory 128 103 206 138 210 195 311 289
Learning (10) (8) 46 37 205 183 165 146
Financial 94 68 99 71 99 76 113 1
Scientific & Healthcare 28 25 34 34 35 30 79 75
Corporate and other (12) (28) (2) (19} (s) (33) (33) (18)
228 160 383 3N 544 451 635 607
Disposals? (1) 4 2 - 1 1) (6) 2
227 164 385 3 545 450 629 609
Operating profit (loss)®
Legal & Regulatory 90 71 170 153 176 164 272 259
Learning (35) (29) 16 12 150 141 133 110
Financial 57 45 62 46 62 50 76 79
Scientific & Healthcare 21 19 29 28 29 24 72 69
Corporate and other (4 (o) (4 (1) 8  (4) (34)  (21)
119 76 273 218 409 345 519 496
Disposals? (2) (4) 1 (4) - ) (9) 2

409

334

510

498

g€




Quarter ended .

1 Corporate and other includes the results of Thornson Medla a non-reportable segment, ds well as corporate
" associated with the Company’s stock appreclanon nghts Both 2001 and 2000 quarterly results have been re
“of Thomson Media. .

2 Disposalsinclude the results of busmesses sold or held for sale

3 ‘Before amortization, restructuring charges and Year 2000 costs.

4 Percommon share amounts for the quarter are computed mdependently and, due to the computa

qual ‘the year-to-date penod .

Quarter ended Quarter ended
(millions of US dollars. ] March 31 June 30 : qutember(3'o
except per common share amounts) 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 ;i 20007
Earnings (loss) attributable
to common shares:
From continuing operations 151 (42) 110 74 147 168 249 371
From discontinued operations 16 20 7 30 64 503 5 99
167 (22) 117 104 21 671 254 470
Basic earnings (loss)
per common share:*
From continuing operations $0.24 ${0.07) $018 $o012 $0.23 S$o0.27 $040 So.59
From discontinued operations $0.03 $o0.03 $o.01 So005 $001  So.31 $ - So.6
$027 ${o.04) $019 Soa7y $0.34 S$51.08 $0.40 S0.75
Diluted earnings (loss)
per common share:*
From continuing operations $0.24 ${c.07) $018 So.12 $023 $o0.27 $o040 So.59
From discontinued operations $003 $o0.03 $0.01 So.0% $0117 S$o0.8o $ - Soa6
$0.27 $(o.04) S0.19 Soa7y $o.34 S$ho7 $0.40 So.7%
Supplemental information
Earnings from continuing
operations as above 151 (42) 110 74 147 168 249 371
Adjust: one-time items, net of tax,
resulting from net {gains) losses
on disposals of businesses
and investments, restructuring
charges and Year 2000 costs (193) (4) (26) (18) 9 4 4 20
One-time tax benefits - - - - - - - (103)
Adjusted earnings from
continuing operations (42) (46) 84 56 156 172 253 286
" Adjusted basic and diluted
garnings per common
share from continuing .
operations S(o.o7) S(o Q7) Son 3 S 0.09 $ 0.25 $o0.28 $040 So0.46
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Capltal Stock

L The capttal stock ofThomson
" consists of voting common shares -

and non-voting preference shares.

. Shares outstanding as of
December 31, 2001:

--Common: 630,740, 649 »

Series || preferred 6. ooo ooo T

: Senes v preferred 18,000,000

Major shareholder the Thomson

family (approximately 73%
ofcom mon shares)

' Listing of Capital stock' :

t:1--Commori-shares listed on:

- Jie The Toronto Stock Exchange

{ticker symbol TOC)

e The London Stock Exchange
v :"-‘Preference shares listed oni:

l ‘ The Toronto Stock Exchange

Yearend December »

" Annual report' malled Apnl

Quarterly reports mailed Mayf

accompanies, the annual meetmg

5 Annual Meetmg

'Di\ri‘dend Revlnve‘strhent'-,‘l?lan

“ment plan. under which eligible”

* have cash dlvtdends reinvested in
- ‘commen shares Furthermformatlo
i ;avallable from the remstrars

C Corporate Gove nance
.. August/November to sharehclders ~
~"wha have elected to réceive them e

‘by completmg the form that

*"gmformatlon circularenclosed

: to shareholders

- Eiecuti\ie Ofﬁce

Common Share Dividends

At the discretion of the directors..
Paid on March15/june 15/

* September 15/December15or
‘on the first business day thereafter. -

Declared in US dollars but can’
be paid in Canadian dollars at

" the holder's option or to eligible =~ -
shareholders in pounds §te_r[ing' G

- {see also.note:13; page 66): " -
. Further information avaxlable
from the reglstrars :

Thursday, May 8 2002, 12 00 noon
at the Design Exchange
-:234 Bay Street..
Toronto, Ontano o

common shareholders may elect to

A statement of'the Company H]
| ohcy with respect to corporate .
‘governance.is included in'the -

with the annual report malled

Metro Center

' One Station Place-

. Stamford, Connecticut 06902
United States o

tel 203.328.9400

g , anncrpal Reglstrar

" gth Floor™:

_tel:1.800. 663.99_9'} n-
. caregistryinfo@computershare.com

.or ;ohn kechepan@thomson com

Computershare Trust
Company of Canada
100 Umversxt »Avenue

Toronto, Ontano
M5) 2v1 Canada

relations i mqurr
John Kechejian, Vice" Presrdent
Investor Relatlons at 1.800.969. 9974.




We Remember

Jill Campbell
b. 2 june 1970

Wade Green
b. 6 November 1958

Thomas E. Hynes
b. 19 December 1972

Ruth Lapin
b. 16 April 1948

Robert (Bob) Levine
b. 20 july 1935

Carlos Montoya
b. 1 March 1965

Jim Murphy
b. 12 February 1971

Bob Rasmussen
b. 14 November 1958

Amy E. Toyen
b. 20 June 1977

Steven Weinberg
b. 7 December 1959

Louis Calvin Williams 111
b. 17 August 1948
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The Thomson Corporation

Metro Center

Orne Station Place
Stamford, Connecticut
United States 06g02
tel 203.328.9400

fax 203.328.8398

Toronto-Dominicn Bank Tower
66 Wellington Street West
Toronto, Ontario M§K 1A1
Canada

tel 416.360.8700

fax 416.360.8812

The Quadrangle
180 Wardour Street
London w1a 4vg
United Kingdom
tel 44.20.7437.9787
fax 44.20.7734.0561

www.thomson.com
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Kenneth R. Thomson, Toronto, Ontario 459,000,488?

Chairman of Thomson
W. Geoffrey Beattie, Toronto, Ontario 1098 500 -
Deputy Chairman of Thomson and President of Woodbridge

(holding company)
Richard |. Harrington, Westport, Connecticut 1993 15,000 162,893
President and Chief Executive Officer of Thomson

Ron D. Barbaro, Toronto, Ontario 1993 25,000 5,095
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Ontario Lottery

and Gaming Corporation {gaming) f»f
Robert D. Daleo, Fort Lee, New Jersey 2001 1,100 28,810 : ;;12555

L

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Thomson
Steven A, Denning, Greenwich, Connecticut 2000 - 2,275
Managing Partner of General Atlantic Partners, LLC

{venture investment firm)
John F. Fraser, 0.C., Winnipeg, Manitoba 1989 2,385 5,230
Chairman of Air Canada (airline)
V. Maureen Kempston Darkes, 0.C., Miami, Florida 1096 500 4,614
President of General Motors Latin America, Africa, Mid-East

and Croup Vice President of General Motors Corporation

(automobile manufacturer)

Roger L. Martin, Toronto, Ontario 1869 6,000 2,822
Dean of the Joseph L. Rotman School of Management at the

University of Toronto (post secondary education)
Vance K. Opperman, Minneapolis, Minnesota 1996 40,000
President and Chief Executive Officer of Key Investment, Inc.

(holding company)
David H. Shaffer, Stamford, Connecticut 1998 40,000
Executive Vice President of Thomsan and President and

Chief Executive Officer of Thomson Learning
David K.R. Thomson, Toronto, Ontario 1688 6,070 -
Deputy Chairman of Woodbridge (holding company)

Peter J. Thomson, Toronto, Ontario 1995 - -
Deputy Chairman of Woodbridge (holding company)
Richard M. Thomson, 0.C., Toronto, Ontario 1984 31,700 5,688

Corporate Director

John A.Tory, Toronto, Ontario 1978 468,214 -
President of Thomson Investments Limited (holding company)
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of:compensation: ea
ficers

Payouts

Other Secunities Restricted
Annual Under Shares Long-Term  All Other

Name and Compen- Options/SARs ar Restricted  Incentive Plon Compen-
Principal Position Year Salary (5} Banus (S) sation () Granted (#) Share Units (S) Payouts {$}  sation {§)?
Richard ). Harrington 2001 1,200,000 1,840,80¢ 481,715’ 375,000 - - 5,100
President and 2000 1,150,000 1,840,000 122,282° 325,000 - - 5100
Chief Executive Officer 1999 1,100,000 1,672,000 §6,431 340,000 - 1,100,000 4,800
David H. Shaffer 2001 950,000 1,365,150  206,265* 208,000 - - 5,100
Executive Vice President 2000 900,000 1,440,000 251,319* 175.000 - - 5,100
of Thomson and President 1999 837,500 1,273,000 387,664* 210,000 - 837,500 4,800
and Chief Executive Officer
of Thomson Learning
Brian H. Hall 2001 750,000 896,250  326,907° 155,000 - 807,444 5,000
Executive Vice President 2000 700,000 1,227,100 ~ 110,000 - 1,140,861 5,042
of Thomson and President 1999 616,667 1,143,301 - 80.000 ~ 2,315,821 4,8c0
and Chief Executive Officer
of Thomson Legal and
Regulatory

2001 690,000 1,058,460 252,917° 133,000 - - 4,806

2000 650,000 1,040,000 - 110,000 - 929,500 5,100

1999 600,000 462,000 - 50,000 - 564,520 4,800
Patrick J. Tierney 2001 660,000 660,000 659,026 130,000 - 511,317 4,733
Executive Vice President 2000 620,830 600,000 39,3637 92,000 - 678,922 5,100
of Thomson and President 1999 550,006 500,406 38,2367 70,000 - 631,442 4,300

and Chief Executive Officer




3 years
3 years




Richard |

David H. Shaffer
Brian H. Hall
Robert D. Daleo

Patrick J. Tierney

Richard |. Harrington
David H. Shaffer
Brian H. Hall

Robert D. Daleo

375,000
208,000
155,000
133,000
130,000

11.8%
6.6%
4.9%

2,294,404

124,452

766,749/1,059,501
159,083/697,251
106,000/35 4,001
117,459/300,501

75.019/300,001

Dec. 12, 20m
Dec. 12, 2011
Dec. 12, 20m
Dec. 12, 20m

8,426,125/3,629,655%
605,351/1,505,754
948,955/1,090,398
1,263,066/833,141
506,114/808,946
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United States 06902
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Toronto-Dominion Bank Tower
66 Wellington Street West
Toronto, Ontario MSK 1A1
Canada

tel 416.360.8700

fax 416.360.8812

The Quadrangle
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London wia 4vG
United Kingdom
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THE THOMSON CORPORATION ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
May 8, 2002 at 12:00 noon, the Design Exchange, 234 Bay Street, Toronto, Ontario, Canada

This Proxy is solicited on behalf of management.

The undersigned shareholder of The Thomson Corporation hereby appoints Mr. K.R. Thomson, or failing him, Mr. W.G. Beattie, or failing him, Mr. R.J.

Harrington, being directors of the company, or instead of any of the foregoing

as nominee of the undersigned, to vote and act for the undersigned at the annual meeting of shareholders called for the 8th day of May, 2002, and at all

adjournments thereof, upon the following matters:

(1) FOR [0 WITHHOLD VOTE [0 in the election of directors;
(2 FOR [J WITHHOLD VOTE [
(3) such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

Signature

-

£ L

in the appointment of auditors and in authorizing the directors to fix their remuneration; and

CONTROL NUMBER:
PERSONAL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PIN):

Date

, 2002.

A shareholder may submit voting instructions by mail, telephone, fax or Internet. See instructions on reverse.
A shareholder may appoint a person to represent him or her at the meeting other than the persons designated in this proxy. See instructions on reverse.

DETACH HERE

THE THOMSON CORPORATION
CHANGE OF ADDRESS NOTIFICATION

Common Shareholders

Effective: , 20

Name of Registered Security Holder (plcase print cxactly as registered on your certificate)

Previous Address (Street, Municipality, Postal Code)

New Address (Street, Municipality, Postal Code)

Signature of
Registered Holder

Date

Important Notes:

1. Tnorder to ensure the proper identification of your account please include your previous address or attach the label from a recent mailing. If you are receiving more than one mailing
please provide the numbers of the accounts which you will allow us to consolidate by completing the reverse hereof and returning it in the envelope provided.
2. You cannot submit a change of address by telephone or through the Internct. If your address has changed, you must submit this form in order to notify Thomson of your change of

address.

DETACH HERE

A message from Canada Customs and Revenue Agency

If you receive income from securities, a trust or mutual fund (in the
form of dividends, interest, redemption premiums, etc.) the Income
Tax Act requires that you give your Social Insurance Number to the
person (the issuing company, trustee, or agent) who prepares
information slips on your behalf.

Providing your Social Insurance Number (SIN) will improve the
fairness of the tax system because it ensures that investment income is
deciared at tax time so everyone pays their fair share. Your
co-operation helps us process forms more quickly, and provide better
and more timely service.

Social Insurance Number:

Complete, Detach and Return to Computershare Trust Company of
Canada

The issuer, trustee or agent is required by law to ask for your Social
Insurance Number. If you do not give your SIN to authorized
individuals when requested, you are liable for a penalty of $100.

If you do not have a Social Insurance Number, please contact your local
Canada Employment Centre. As soon as you receive your Social
Insurance Number card in the mail, inform the issuer, trustee or agent.
In addition, be sure to name the security you hold, and give your fuil
name and address as registered. For further information, please call or
visit your local district taxation office.

You cannot submit your SIN by telephone or through the Internet. If
applicable, you must provide your SIN by completing, detaching and
returning this form.

\\°




Notes:

(a) A shareholder may appoint a person, other than the persons designated in this proxy, to
represent him or her at the meeting. To do this, inscrt in the space provided the name of
the other person you wish to appoint. The person does not need to be a shareholder.
You may also appoint your proxy through the Internct. Voting by mail, fax or Internet
are the only ways to appoint a person as proxy other than the persons designated in this
proxy.

(b) To be wvalid, this proxy should be signed, dated and deposited either with
Computershare Trust Company of Canada at 100 University Avenue, 9th Floor,
Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2Y1, Canada, or with Capita IRG plc at Bournc Housc, 34
Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4BR, United Kingdom no later than the
close of business on May 6, 2002. If you vote by telephone or Internet, you must submit
your vote by the closc of business on May 6, 2002.

(c) If the sharcholder is a corporation, this proxy must be exccuted by a duly authorized
officer or attorney of the shareholder and, if the shareholder has a corporate seal, its
corporate seal should be affixed. If you are voting on behalf of a corporation or another
individual, you may requirc documentation cvidencing your power to sign the proxy
with signing capacity stated.

(d) Plcase sec the accompanying information circular for further information on how to
complete and use this proxy and for other information about the meeting.

(e) If a share is held by more than one person, any one of them present or represented by
proxy at a meeting of shareholders may, in the absence of the other or others, vote the
share, but if more than onc of them arc present or represented by proxy they must vote
Lo%letlt;er‘ Voting by mail or fax are the only ways to vote a person’s shares on his or her

chalf.

Voting Instructions:
By mail

‘1. Complete the front of this form.

2. Sign and return the form to Computershare or Capita TRG in the enclosed envelope.

By telephone (Canada and United States only)
1. Using a touchtone telephone, call toll free at 1-800-816-9061.

2. When prompted, enter the l4-digit Control Number and the 5-digit Personal
Idenification Number (PIN) located on the front of this form.

3. Follow the voice instructions.

By fax (Canada and United States only)
1. Complcte the front of this form.

2. Sign and fax thc form to Computcrshare at (416) 263-9524 ar toll free at
1-866-249-7775.

By Internet
1. Go to the web site www.computershare.com/ca/praxy.
2. Follow the instructions on the site.

3. You will be required to enter the 14-digit Control Number and S-digit PIN located on
the front of this form.

DETACH HERE
CUSIP 884903105
THE THOMSON CORPORATION
Please consolidate all the accounts indicated below in a single account bearing the number
1. 2.
(Name) (Name)
(Address) (Address)
(Account No.) (Account No.)
Authorized by:
Signature Date
DETACH HERE
The Thomson Corporation CusIp 884903105

Important Notice
Quarterly Reports — Do you wish to receive them?

Thomson regularly provides full information to the press and on its website at www.thomson.com the day its quarterly results are announced. Thomson also posts
quarterly reports on its website. However, you can enroll to receive quarterly reports and other shareholder communications electronically at
www.computershare.com/ca/consent. Enter your 14-digit Control Number and 5-digit PIN locared on the front of this form and follow the instrucrions on the site to
enroll. For these reasons, many of our registered shareholders do not wish to receive printed copies of quarterly reports by mail.

If you still wish to receive quarterly reports by mail, you can enroll by returning this card in the envelope provided. If this card is not returned or you do not register
to receive quarterly reports electronically, we will assume you do not wish to receive these reports; however, you will continue to receive the annual report and

associated proxy material.

I If you wish to receive quarterly reports by mail in

(Name)

2002. please check here and provide your name
and address in the space provided to the left.

(Address)
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THE THOMSON CORPORATION ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
May 8, 2002 at 12:00 noon, the Design Exchange, 234 Bay Street, Toronto, Ontario, Canada

This Proxy is solicited on behalf of management.
The undersigned sharehoider of The Thomson Corporation hereby appoints Mr. K.R. Thomson, or failing him, Mr. W.G. Beattie, or failing him, Mr. R.J.
Harrington, being directors of the company, or instead of any of the foregoing
as nominee of the undersigned. to vote and act for the undersigned at the annual meeting of shareholders called for the 8th day of May, 2002, and at all
adjournments thereof, upon the following matters:
(1) FOR O WITHHOLD VOTE [J in the election of directors;
(2) FOR O WITHHOLD VOTE [ in the appointment of auditors and in authorizing the directors to fix their remuneration; and
(3) such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

Signature Date , 2002,

* A shareholder may appoint a person to represent him or her at the meeting other than the persons designated in this proxy. See Instructions on reverse.

** A shareholder who receives this proxy form cannot vote his or her shares by telephone, fax or through the Internet.

DETACH HERE

THE THOMSON CORPORATION
SUPPLEMENTAL MAILING LIST

Canadian securities legislation obliges Thomson to deliver its interim financial statements to any person or company who submits a written request
to the company for such statements, including a statement signed by such person or company that the person or company is the owner of securities
of Thomson. Thomson regularly provides full information to the press and on its website at www.thomson.com the day its quarterly results are
announced. Thomson also posts quarterly reports on its website. However, if you would like your name placed on the supplemental mailing list
maintained by the company to receive interim financial statements kindly complete the form below and return it with your proxy form in the return
envelope.

DETACH HERE

THE THOMSON CORPORATION

I would like my name placed on the supplemental mailing list of shareholders maintained by Thomson and confirm that [ am an owner of securities
of the company.

Name:

Address:

Signature: Date:




Notes:

(a) A sharcholder may appoint a person, other than the persons designated in this proxy, to
represent him or her at the meeting. To do this, insert in the space provided the name of
the other person you wish to appoint. The person docs not need to be a sharcholder.

(b) To be valid, this proxy should be signed, dated and deposited either with Computershare
Trust Company of Canada at 100 University Avenue, 9th Floor, Toronto, Ontario,
M3J 2Y1, Canada, or with Capita IRG plc at Bourne House, 34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4BR, United Kingdom no later than the close of business on
May 6, 2002.

(c) If the sharcholder is a corporation, this proxy must be exccuted by a duly authorized
officer or attorney of the sharcholder and, if the sharcholder has a corporate seal, its
corporate seal should be affixed. If you are voting on behalf of a corporation or another
individual, you may requirc documentation evidencing your power to sign the proxy with
signing capacity stated.

(d) Pleasc scc the accompanying information circular for further information on how to
complete and use this proxy and for other information about the mecting.

(¢) If a share is held by more than one person, any one of them present or represented by
proxy at a mecting of sharcholders may, in the absence of the other or others, vote the
share, but if more than one of them are present or represented by proxy they must vote
together.

DETACH HERE

CUSIP 884903105

DETACH HERE

CUSIP 884903105
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April 9, 2002
Dear Thomson Shareholder:

Thomson is pleased to introduce two optional electronic services — shareholder voting and delivery of
shareholder communications. We hope these services will be more convenient for you and make our
shareholder communications more efficient and effective.

Electronic voting

You now have the option to vote your shares on the business to be considered at the 2002 annual meeting of
shareholders through the Internet. To do so, you must have access to the Internet. You can also vote your
shares by mail, telephone or fax.

To vote your shares through the Internet, follow the instructions on the voting instruction form included with
the annual meeting materials sent to you. Your voting instruction form includes a Control Number assigned
to you that will enable you to vote your shares at www.proxyvotecanada.com. Follow the instructions on the
site to vote your shares. You will be required to enter your Control Number on the site, so please make sure
you have your Control Number ready to convey your voting instructions.over the Internet.

Electronic delivery of documents

You may now choose to electronically access the following important Thomson documents easily and quickly:
* Annual and quarterly reports, including interim and annual financial statements
* Notices of shareholder meetings

* Information circulars and proxy-related materials

You can enroll for this service as described below or, if you voted your shares through the Internet, you can
enroll by following the instructions on the site after voting your shares. To enroll, you must have an e-mail
account and access to the Internet. If electronic delivery of documents is not convenient for you, company
documents will continue to be mailed to you.

To take advantage of electronic delivery, go to www.investordeliverycanada.com and follow the instructions to
enroll. When prompted, enter your Control Number. Your Control Number is displayed on the voting
instruction form included with the 2002 annual meeting materials sent to you. If you hold Thomson shares in
multiple accounts, you will receive a voting instruction form and a Control Number for each account. You
must register for each account and each account will have a unique PIN determined by you. Each account
will be coded for electronic delivery of documents and you will be notified by e-mail when companies held in
your account(s) make documents available online. An e-mail confirmation of your election(s) for this option
will be sent to your e-mail address. You will also receive the Control Number described above to allow you
to vote your shares through the Internet for future meetings.

Your enrollment for electronic delivery will remain in effect until you cancel it. You may cancel at any time
by going to www.investordeliverycanada.com and following the instructions on the site.

We hope that you will take advantage of these new online services and enjoy their benefits.

3




THOMSON
——

T

April 9, 2002
Dear Thomson Shareholder:

Thomson is pleased to introduce two optional electronic services — sharcholder voting and delivery of
shareholder communications. We hope these services will be more convenient for you and make our
sharcholder communications more efficient and effective.

Electronic voting

You now have the option to vote your shares on the business to be considered at the 2002 annual meeting of
shareholders through the Internet. To do so, you must have access to the Internet. You can also vote your
shares by mail, telephone or fax.

To vote your shares through the Internet, follow the instructions on the proxy form included with the 2002
annual meeting materials sent to you. Your proxy form includes a 14-digit Control Number and 5-digit
Personal Identification Number (PIN) assigned to you that will enable you to vote your shares at
www.computershare.com/ca/proxy. Follow the instructions on the site to vote your shares. You will be
required to enter your Control Number and PIN on the site, so please make sure you have these numbers
ready to convey your voting instructions over the Internet.

Electronic delivery of documents

You may now choose to electronically access the following important Thomson documents easily and quickly:
* Annual and quarterly reports, including interim and annual financial statements
* Notices of shareholder meetings
* Information circulars and proxy-related materials
You can enroll for this service as described below or, if you voted your shares through the Internet, you can
enroll by following the instructions on the site after voting your shares. To enroll, you must have an e-mail

account and access to the Internet. If electronic delivery of documents is not convenient for you, company
documents will continue to be mailed to you.

To take advantage of electronic delivery, go to www.computershare.com/ca/consent and follow the
instructions to enroll. When prompted, enter your Control Number and PIN. Your Control Number and PIN
are located on the front of the proxy form included with the 2002 annual meeting materials sent to you.

Your enrollment for electronic delivery will remain in effect until you cancel it. You may cancel at any time
by sending an e-mail to info@computershare.com stating that you wish to cancel your enrollment. Please
include your full name as it appears on your share certificate and your mailing address.

We hope that you will take advantage of these new online services and enjoy their benefits.
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April 9, 2002
Dear Thomson Shareholder:

Thomson is pleased to introduce two optional electronic services — shareholder voting and delivery of
shareholder communications. We hope these services will be more convenient for you and make our
shareholder communications more efficient and effective.

Electronic voting

You now have the option to vote your shares on the business to be considered at the 2002 annual meeting of
shareholders through the Internet. To do so, you must have access to the Internet. You can also vote your
shares by mail.

To vote your shares through the Internet, follow the instructions on the proxy form included with the 2002
annual meeting materials sent to you. Your proxy form includes an Investor Code assigned to you that will
enable you to vote your shares at www.capita-irg.com. Follow the instructions on the proxy form and the site
to vote your shares. You will be required to enter your Investor Code, family name and Post Code on the
site, so please make sure you have these ready to convey your voting instructions over the Internet.

Electronic defivery of documents

You may now choose to electronically access the following important Thomson documents easily and quickly:
* Annual and quarterly reports, including interim and annual financial statements
* Notices of shareholder meetings
* Information circulars and proxy-related materials
You can enroll for electronic delivery as described below or, if you voted your shares through the Internet,
you can enroll by following the instructions on the site after voting your shares. To enroll, you must have an
e-mail account and access to the Internet. If electronic delivery of documents is not convenient for you,
company documents will continue to be mailed to you.
You can take advantage of electronic delivery as follows:

» Go to the web site www.capita-irg.com.

+ Click on “Shareholder Account Services”.

* When prompted, enter “The Thomson Corporation” as the company for which you wish to enroll for
electronic delivery.

* When prompted, enter your Investor Code, family name and Post Code. Your Investor Code is
located on the front of the proxy form included with the 2002 annual meeting materials sent to you.

* Continue to follow the instructions on the site to enroll.

Your enrollment for electronic delivery will remain in effect until you cancel it. You may cancel at any time
by going to www.capita-irg.com and following the instructions on the site.

Please include your full name as it appears on your share certificate and your mailing address.

We hope that you will take advantage of these new online services and enjoy their benefits.




